

# MATS CENTRE FOR OPEN & DISTANCE EDUCATION

# Social Action & Social Movement

Master of Social Work (MSW) Semester - 2





# **ODLMSW - 204**





# **Social Action & Social Movements**

# **Course Index**

		Page No.
	<b>Module - 1 Introduction of Social Action and Movements</b>	
Unit - 1	Introduction	5-11
	Concept of Social Action and Social Movements	
Unit - 2	History of Social Action & Movements	11-48
	Social Action as a Method of Social Work	
	Models of Social Action	
Unit - 3	Conscientisation model of Paulo Freire	48-77
	Role of ideology	
	Saul Alinsky as a radical community organizer	
Unit - 4	Liberation Theology	77-83
	Conclusion	
	Comprehension Questions	
	References	
	Module - 2 Social Movements	
Unit - 5	Introduction	84-88
	Origin of Social Movements	
Unit - 6	Nature of Social Movements	88-95
CIIIC O	Types of Social Movements	
Unit - 7	Theories of Social Movements	95-98
Unit - 8	New Social Movements – NSM	98-104
	Conclusion	
	Comprehension Questions	$\neg$
	References	$\dashv$
M	odule - 3 Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change	
Unit - 9	Introduction	105-108
	Movement Analysis	
<b>Unit - 10</b>	Ideology	108-114
	Structure	
	Leadership	
<b>Unit - 11</b>	Process and Outcomes	114-122
	Analysis of ideology and approach of Gandhi	
	Analysis of ideology & approach of Martin Luther King Jr.	

<b>Unit - 12</b>	Analysis of ideology and approach of Frantz Fanon	122-128	
	Conclusion		
	Comprehension Questions		
	References		
Module - 4 Sociological Concepts			
<b>Unit - 13</b>	Introduction	129-136	
	Sociological Concepts		
<b>Unit - 14</b>	Social Structure	136-146	
	Social Institutions and Social Groups		
<b>Unit - 15</b>	Socialization	146-150	
	Social Control		
<b>Unit - 16</b>	Social Change	150-156	
	Conclusion		
	Comprehension Questions		
	References		

#### COURSE DEVELOPMENT EXPERT COMMITTEE

#### 1. Dr. Deena Nath Yaday

Asst. Professor & Head, Department of Social Work, MATS University, Raipur

#### 2. Prof. Richa Yadav

Head, Branch of Social Work, Department of Social Science,

Dr. CV Raman University Bilaspur CG.

#### 3. Dr. Chhabinath Yaday

Asst. Professor, Department of Social Work, MATS University, Raipur

#### **COURSE COORDINATOR**

#### Dr. Deena Nath Yadav

Asst. Professor & Head, Department of Social Work, MATS University, Raipur

#### COURSE EDITOR/BLOCK PREPARATION

#### Dr. Deena Nath Yadav

Asst. Professor & Head, Department of Social Work, MATS University, Raipur

#### NAME OF UNIT WRITERS

Dr. Deena Nath Yaday - Unit: 1-8

Dr. Chhabinath Yaday - Unit:9-12

Dr. Uttam Kumar Biswas -Unit: 13-16

March 2025 ISBN:978-93-6884-783-0

@MATS Centre for Distance and Online Education, MATS University, Village-Gullu, Aarang, Raipur-(Chhattisgarh)
All rights reserved. No part of this work may be reproduced or transmitted or utilized or stored in any form, by mimeograph or any other means, without permission in writing from MATS University, Village-Gullu, Aarang, Raipur-(Chhattisgarh)
Printed & Published on behalf of MATS University, Village-Gullu, Aarang, Raipur by Mr. Meghanadhudu Katabathuni, Facilities & Operations, MATS University, Raipur (C.G.)

**Disclaimer** - Publisher of this printing material is not responsible for any error or dispute from contents of this course material, this is completely depends on AUTHOR'S MANUSCRIPT.

Printed at: The Digital Press, Krishna Complex, Raipur-492001(Chhattisgarh)

# **Acknowledgements:**

The material we have used is purely for educational purposes. Every effort has been made to trace the copyright holders of material reproduced in this book. Should any infringement have occurred, the publishers and editors apologize and will be pleased to make the necessary corrections in future editions of this book.



# Module - 1

## **Introduction of Social Action and Movements**

#### **Contents**

Unit - 1	Introduction	
	Concept of Social Action and Social Movements	
Unit - 2	History of Social Action & Movements	
	Social Action as a Method of Social Work	
	Models of Social Action	
Unit - 3	Conscientisation model of Paulo Freire	
	Role of ideology	
	Saul Alinsky as a radical community organizer	
Unit - 4	Liberation Theology	
	Conclusion	
	Comprehension Questions	
	References	

#### Unit - 1

#### **Learning Objectives**

Social Action and Social Movements: Concept, History, Social Action as a Method of Social Work.

#### 1.1 Introduction

#### Social Action and Social Movements

Social Action and Social Movement are important tools for bringing positive change in society. The primary objective of both is to eliminate inequality, injustice, and discrimination prevailing in society and to ensure the rights of the weaker and deprived sections.

#### **Introduction to Social Action**

Social Action is a significant method of social work through which individuals and communities are organized to solve social problems. It is a well-planned process that fights for the rights of deprived and exploited sections of society and exerts pressure on the government and administration for policy changes.



#### **Main Objectives:**

- To eliminate social injustice and discrimination.
- To empower deprived communities.
- To bring improvements in government policies and programs.
- To promote public awareness and collective participation.

#### **Introduction to Social Movements**

A social movement is a collective effort focused on a specific social, political, or economic issue. When a large section of society faces a problem or injustice, they organize a movement to demand their rights and justice. Such movements often last for a long time and help bring permanent changes in society.

#### **Main Objectives:**

- To raise awareness about a major societal issue.
- To collectively struggle against injustice and exploitation.
- To demand changes in government policies and laws.
- To establish equality and justice.

Both Social Action and Social Movements serve as effective means of bringing change and ensuring justice in society. While Social Action mainly focuses on policy and legal reforms, Social Movements aim at broad structural changes in society. The coordination of these two contributes to establishing a more equitable and just social system.

## 1.2 Concept of Social Action and Social Movements

#### 1.2.1 Definition of Social Action

"Voice for the Voiceless" "दबे कुचले लोगों की आवाज"

Social Action is an organized and planned approach that brings change in the field of social work for weak, marginalized, and exploited communities. Its primary goal is to eliminate social injustice and inequalities prevailing in society and to address the problems of deprived sections. This meth-



od helps influence policy-making, organize communities, and advocate for the rights of the underprivileged.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

#### **Definitions by Scholars:**

- Mary Richmond: "Social action is a systematic effort aimed at bringing changes in social and economic institutions."
- **Brito:** "Social action is an individual or group effort undertaken within the framework of social work to bring changes in society."
- **Professor Frank A. Mills:** "Social action is a process through which the balance of power is adjusted in favor of the weaker sections"
- **Pillai and Alexander:** "Social action is a well-organized effort aimed at improving the living standards of socially and economically backward groups."

#### 1.2.2 Concept of Social Action

Social action can be defined as a deliberate process of bringing social change through collective efforts. It is not only one of the methods of social work but also a crucial element of social activism.

Social action is a powerful medium to eliminate inequalities, exploitation, injustice, and discrimination present in society. It represents well-thought-out and strategic efforts aimed at promoting positive changes in society. It involves tools such as mass awareness, community organization, movements, public dialogue, and policy-making to secure rights for the deprived and weaker sections.

## **Types of Social Action:**

- Constructive Social Action Works towards bringing positive changes through various schemes, projects, and programs like education, health, and women's empowerment.
- **Resistant Social Action** Works against injustice, exploitation, and discrimination through protests, demonstrations, and mass movements like Satyagraha.

Social action is inspired by the ideologies of Mahatma Gandhi, Vinoba Bhave, Martin Luther King Jr., and Nelson Mandela, who attempted to bring widespread change in society through principles of non-violence,



satyagraha, and equality.

Thus, social action is not just a way to solve problems but a continuous process that works towards establishing equality, justice, and fairness in society.

#### 1.2.3 Objectives of Social Action (Samajik Karvai ke Uddeshya)

The main objective of social action is to promote equality, justice, and equal opportunities in society. It is an active effort to protect the rights of communities and individuals facing various social, economic, and political challenges

#### **Major Objectives:**

#### 1. Empowerment of Communities

- Raising awareness about rights among deprived and weaker sections.
- Promoting self-reliance and linking them to government schemes and resources.
- Providing training and education for social, economic, and political empowerment.

## 2. Policy and Legal Reforms

- Advocating for laws and policies that promote social justice.
- Encouraging reforms at the governmental and administrative levels.

#### 3. Social Awareness

- Spreading awareness about issues like poverty, caste, gender, and economic inequality.
- Educating people about human rights, civil rights, and duties.

#### 4. Collective Action

- Organizing communities to solve their problems through cooperation.
- Using protests, satyagraha, and social movements to bring change.



#### 5. Redistribution of Resources

• Ensuring fair distribution of resources and opportunities in society.

Social action is not just about raising voices against injustice but also a means to bring real change in policy-making, public awareness, legal reforms, and resource distribution to ensure equal opportunities for all.

#### 1.2.4 Definition of Social Movements

A Social Movement is an organized and collective effort aimed at bringing or preventing social, economic, political, or cultural change. Such movements are driven by specific social groups advocating for reform, rights, or policy changes.

#### **Definitions by Experts:**

- **Herbert Blumer:** "Social movements are collective efforts that establish a new idea or social order or seek to change the existing one."
- **Malcolm Spector:** "When people organize and act collectively to solve a social problem, it is called a social movement."
- **Paul Wilkinson:** "A social movement is an organized effort aimed at bringing change or fulfilling a specific social objective."

## **Key Elements of Social Movements:**

- Collectivity Social movements are not individual efforts but collective ones.
- **Organization** These movements are led by groups, leaders, or organizations.
- **Objective** They aim to solve social issues or implement new ideas.
- **Continuity** Movements may last for a long time.

Social movements play an essential role in bringing positive social change, fighting injustice, and promoting awareness. They have contributed to historic transformations and remain an effective tool for social reform

## 1.2.5 Concept of Social Movements

Social movements are organized and collective efforts aimed at bring-



ing about change in society or addressing a social, political, economic, or cultural issue. These movements are usually led by a specific group in society striving for their rights, identity, reforms, or policy changes.

Social movements can be both positive (reformist) and negative (resistant). They may be peaceful and non-violent or sometimes aggressive and revolutionary.

#### 1.2.6 Objectives of Social Movements

The primary objective of social movements is to bring positive change in society, oppose injustice, and promote social reforms. These movements are collectively organized to resolve specific social, political, economic, or cultural issues.

#### **Main Objectives:**

#### A. Social Reform

- Eliminating social evils, discrimination, and injustice.
- Example: Abolition of Sati Pratha, Widow Remarriage Movement.

#### B. Establishment of Equality and Justice

- Eradicating caste, gender, religious, and economic inequality.
- Example: Dalit Movement, Women Empowerment Movement.

## C. Attainment of Political Rights

- Fighting for democratic rights and freedoms.
- Example: Indian Independence Movement, Civil Rights Movement (USA).

## D. Economic Justice & Labor Rights

- Protecting the rights of workers and farmers.
- Example: Trade Union Movement, Farmers' Movement.

#### E. Environmental Protection

- Preserving natural resources and promoting sustainable development.
- Example: Chipko Movement, Narmada Bachao Andolan.

## F. Cultural and Identity Protection

• Safeguarding the rights of indigenous communities, linguistic, and cultural groups.



• Example: Tribal Movements, Linguistic Movements.

## G. Protection of Women's Rights

- Ensuring education, employment, and social security for women.
- Example: #MeToo Movement, Savitribai Phule's Education Movement.

#### H. Protection of Civil Rights

- Defending human rights and fundamental rights.
- Example: Civil Rights Movement, LGBTQ+ Rights Movement.

Social movements serve as an effective means to bring positive changes in society, fight against injustice, and protect rights. These movements play a crucial role in making society more equal, just, and aware. Many historical changes have taken place through these movements, and they will continue to be a powerful tool for social reform in the future.

#### **Unit - 2**

#### 1.3 History of Social Action & Movements

Social action, as a distinct method, has evolved over centuries through various movements and initiatives aimed at bringing social justice, equality, and structural changes. Studying its history provides an opportunity to understand its progress in different historical periods and movements worldwide. Social work has taken many forms in various cultural and social contexts, demonstrating its significance as a powerful tool for societal change.

#### 1.3.1 Social Action & Movements in the Ancient Period

In ancient times, social action and movements were primarily associated with social reforms, religious revival, opposition to slavery and caste discrimination, and struggles of peasants and laborers. During this period, monarchy, religion, culture, and the economy had a deep influence on society, yet movements against social inequality and injustice emerged from time to time.

## A. Major Themes of Social Action and Movements

The key reasons behind social action and movements in ancient times were:

1. Opposition to caste system and social inequality

- NOTES -



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

- 2. Religious reforms and Buddhist-Jain movements
- 3. Peasant revolts and labor movements
- 4. Women's rights and social reforms
- 5. Political movements and anti-slavery campaigns

#### 1.3.2 Social Action & Movements in Ancient India

#### A. Vedic Period Social Reforms (1500-600 BCE)

- In the early Vedic period, society was relatively egalitarian, but in the later Vedic period, caste hierarchy and Brahmanical supremacy became stronger.
- Social inequality increased, leading to the rise of thinkers advocating justice and equality.
- Philosophers like Yajnavalkya, Gargi, and Maitreyi spoke about social justice and equality.

#### B. Buddhist and Jain Movements (6th Century BCE)

The Buddhist and Jain movements were among the most significant social reform movements in ancient India.

- Gautama Buddha (563-483 BCE) and Mahavira Swami (540-468 BCE) opposed caste discrimination, animal sacrifices, superstitions, and ritualism.
- They emphasized non-violence, equality, and social justice.
- These movements promoted the Shramana tradition and re-established ethical and social values.

## C. Social Reforms by Ashoka (3rd Century BCE)

- Mauryan Emperor Ashoka (268-232 BCE) embraced Buddhism and implemented social reforms.
- He promoted non-violence, caste equality, and welfare policies for women, workers, farmers, and traders.

#### D. Anti-Caste and Anti-Brahmanical Movements

 During the Sangam Age (3rd Century BCE – 3rd Century CE) in Tamil Nadu, various reform movements emerged against casteism



and Brahmanical dominance.

• Saints like Thiruvalluvar and other poets spread messages of equality and love.

Social Action and

Movements

#### E. Social Action for Women's Rights

- In early Vedic society, women had access to education and religious participation, but their status declined later.
- Scholars like Gargi and Maitreyi advocated for women's education and rights.
- Various reform efforts were made to restore women's equal status.

#### F. Slavery and Social Struggles

- Slavery was prevalent in ancient India, Greece, and Rome, but opposition to it arose over time.
- Buddhist and Jain texts contain teachings against slavery.

#### 1.3.3 Social Action & Movements in the Ancient World

#### A. Social Movements in Greece

- Socrates (469-399 BCE) advocated morality and justice in society.
- Plato and Aristotle emphasized social and political reforms.

## B. Slave Revolts in Rome (73-71 BCE)

- The Spartacus Revolt was the largest slave uprising in Rome.
- Thousands of enslaved people fought against exploitation and oppression.

## C. Confucian Movement in China (551-479 BCE)

- Confucius emphasized morality, equality, and education.
- His ideas influenced China's social and political structures.

## **Key Impacts of Ancient Social Movements:**

· Buddhist and Jain movements opposed caste discrimination and



violence.

- Social reforms were implemented for women and slaves.
- Social revolts and reforms also took place in ancient Greece, Rome, and China.

#### 1.3.4 Social Action & Movements in the Medieval Period

The medieval period (approximately 8th to 17th century) witnessed several significant social actions and movements. During this time, issues like social inequality, religious reforms, feudalism, the Bhakti movement, and peasant revolts emerged.

# A. Major Themes of Social Action & Movements in the Medieval Period

- 1. Opposition to social inequality and caste system
- 2. Religious reforms and the Bhakti Movement
- 3. Struggles for the rights of peasants and workers
- 4. Women's empowerment and social reforms
- 5. Revolts against foreign rulers and feudalism

#### B. Social Action & Movements in Medieval India

## 1) Bhakti Movement (8th – 17th Century)

The Bhakti movement was a major religious and social reform movement that opposed caste discrimination and social evils.

- **Key Ideas:** Monotheism, opposition to caste divisions, and the message of love and devotion.
- Major Saints and Reformers:
  - **North India:** Sant Kabir, Guru Nanak, Mirabai, Ravidas, Tulsidas, Surdas.
  - **South India:** Ramanuja, Basaveshwara, Akka Mahadevi, Alvars, and Nayanars.
  - **Impact:** Reformation in Hindu society, opposition to social hierarchy, and the rise of devotional music and poetry.



#### 2) Sufi Movement (12th – 16th Century)

Sufi saints spread messages of tolerance, love, brotherhood, and spiritual knowledge.

- **Major Sufi Saints:** Moinuddin Chishti, Nizamuddin Auliya, Baba Farid, Bulleh Shah.
- **Impact:** Promoted Hindu-Muslim unity, social harmony, and religious tolerance.

#### 3) Movements Against Caste System and Social Inequality

- Sant Kabir (15th Century): Opposed casteism and ritualistic practices.
- **Guru Nanak (1469-1539):** Founded Sikhism and emphasized social equality.
- **Predecessors of Jyotirao Phule:** Sant Namdev, Ravidas, and Tukaram worked for the upliftment of Dalits and marginalized communities.

#### 4) Peasant Rebellions and Farmer Movements

During the medieval period, farmers and laborers suffered from increasing exploitation, leading to several uprisings.

- 13th-14th Century: Farmers in South India rebelled against high taxes and exploitation.
- **16th-17th Century:** Farmers revolted against heavy taxation during the Mughal period.
- Sannyasi Rebellion (pre-18th Century): Farmers and ascetics in Bengal fought against oppression.

## 5) Women's Rights and Reform Movements

The condition of women in the medieval period was difficult, but some reform efforts emerged.

- **Mirabai (16th Century):** Encouraged women's participation in the Bhakti movement.
- Akka Mahadevi (12th Century): A female saint from Karnataka who promoted gender equality.
- Razia Sultana (1236-1240): The first female ruler of the Delhi

#### - NOTES -



Sultanate who challenged gender discrimination.

#### C. Social Action & Movements in Medieval Europe

#### 1) Renaissance (14th – 17th Century)

- This movement emphasized education, science, and humanism.
- Opposed the oppressive policies of the Church.
- **Key Figures:** Leonardo da Vinci, Michelangelo, Galileo.

#### 2) Protestant Reformation (16th Century)

- Leaders: Martin Luther and John Calvin protested against the corruption of the Catholic Church.
- Led to the formation of the Protestant branch of Christianity.

#### 3) Peasant and Worker Revolts

- Many peasant revolts took place in Europe against the feudal system.
- **1381** Peasants' Revolt in England.
- 1524 German Peasants' War.

# **Key Impacts of Social Action & Movements in the Medieval Period:**

- The Bhakti and Sufi movements in India promoted religious tolerance.
- Farmers and labourers revolted against exploitation.
- The Renaissance and Protestant Reformation in Europe encouraged education and scientific advancements

## D. Social Action & Movements in the 18th and 19th Century

The 18th and 19th centuries witnessed significant social actions and movements that paved the way for major societal transformations. This period saw movements related to social reforms, the abolition of slavery, women's rights, labor rights, and political freedom.



#### 1) Social Action & Movements in the 18th Century

The 18th century was marked by social reforms and political revolutions. While Europe and America witnessed major social transformations, India saw the foundation of social reforms being laid.

Social Action and Movements

#### a. Industrial Revolution & Labor Movements

- The Industrial Revolution (1760–1840) led to increased poverty, exploitation, and worker inequality in urban areas.
- Workers demanded better wages, shorter working hours, and safer working conditions.
- This movement led to the rise of trade unions.

#### b. French Revolution (1789)

- This revolution was based on the ideals of "Liberty, Equality, and Fraternity."
- It weakened monarchy and feudalism, laying the foundation for modern democracy.
- It provided a new global perspective on human rights and social justice.

## c. Abolition of Slavery Movement

- By the late 18th century, movements against the slave trade emerged in Britain and America.
- In 1787, the Society for the Abolition of the Slave Trade was established in Britain.
- In 1794, France abolished slavery, and in 1807, Britain banned the slave trade.

## 2) Social Action & Movements in the 19th Century

The 19th century witnessed significant movements related to social reforms, women's rights, independence struggles, and labor rights.

#### a. Social Reform Movements in India

19th-century reformers like Raja Ram Mohan Roy, Jyotiba Phule, and



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

Ishwar Chandra Vidyasagar fought against social evils.

- Raja Ram Mohan Roy (Brahmo Samaj 1828) Opposed Sati and promoted women's education.
- **Ishwar Chandra Vidyasagar (1856)** Advocated for the Widow Remarriage Act.
- **Jyotiba Phule (1873 Satyashodhak Samaj)** Supported education for Dalits and women.

#### b. Women's Rights and Empowerment Movements

- In the West, movements for women's voting rights gained momentum.
- Savitri Bai Phule (1848) Established the first school for girls in India.
- Suffragette Movement (1897) Demanded voting rights for women.

#### c. Labor Movements & Development of Trade Unions

- Workers' rights movements gained traction due to industrialization.
- **1864** Establishment of the First International To protect workers' rights.
- **1886** Haymarket Affair, Chicago Protest demanding an 8-hour workday.
- **1891** First Textile Mill Strike in Bombay, India.

## d. Beginning of the Indian Independence Movement

- **1857 Revolt** The first major rebellion against British rule.
- **1885** Establishment of the Indian National Congress (INC) Organized struggle for independence.
- **Swadeshi Movement (1905)** Boycott of foreign goods, promotion of indigenous products.

## e. Environmental and Tribal Rights Movements

• **Birsa Munda Movement (1895-1900)** – Fought for land and forest rights.



• Chipko Movement (Early Ideas) – Laid the foundation for forest conservation.

The social actions and movements of the 18th and 19th centuries laid the foundation for modern social reforms and human rights.

- The 18th century saw industrialization, abolition of slavery, and revolutions shaping society.
- The 19th century focused on social reforms, labor movements, and independence struggles.

## E. Social Action & Movements in the 20th Century

The 20th century was a crucial period for social change, political struggles, and economic reforms. Numerous organized social actions and movements emerged, aiming to establish equality, freedom, human rights, and justice.

#### 1) Major Social Actions in the 20th Century

## a. Gandhian Satyagraha

 Mahatma Gandhi pioneered non-violence and Satyagraha to achieve social and political change.

## • Major Movements:

- Non-Cooperation Movement (1920)
- Civil Disobedience Movement (1930)
- Quit India Movement (1942)

## b. Women Empowerment & Feminist Movements

Movements advocating for women's voting rights, education, employment, and equality emerged.

## • Key Movements in India:

- Savitri Bai Phule's Women's Education Movement.
- 1970s Movements Against Dowry & Domestic Violence.
- #MeToo Movement (1990s & 2000s).

- NOTES -



#### c. Dalit Movement & Social Justice

• Dr. B.R. Ambedkar led struggles against untouchability and for Dalit rights.

#### • Key Movements:

- Mahad Satyagraha (1927)
- Poona Pact (1932)
- Dalit Panthers Movement (1970)

#### d. Labor & Farmer Movements

• Industrialization and land reforms led to organized labor and farmer movements.

#### • Major Movements:

- 1946 Naval Mutiny
- Telangana Peasant Movement (1946-1951)
- Naxalite Movement (1967)
- 2020-2021 Farmers' Protest

#### e. Environmental Movements

• Movements against industrialization and deforestation emerged.

#### • Key Movements:

- Chipko Movement (1973)
- Narmada Bachao Andolan (1985)
- Jal Satyagraha (2000)

## f. Independence Struggles & Nationalist Movements

• Organized movements for freedom from British rule in India.



• Key Movements:

- Home Rule League (1916)
- Khilafat Movement (1919)
- Quit India Movement (1942)

# Social Action and Movements

## 2) Global Social Movements in the 20th Century

- a. Civil Rights Movement (USA, 1950-1960s)
- Led by Martin Luther King Jr. for African American rights.
- Key Events:
- Montgomery Bus Boycott (1955)
- "I Have a Dream" Speech (1963)

#### b. Second Wave Feminism (1960-1980s)

- Movements for women's equal rights, education, and workplace equality.
- Key Issues:
- Equal Pay Movement
- Abortion Rights

## c. LGBTQ+ Rights Movement

- Struggles for the rights of the LGBTQ+ community gained momentum.
- Key Events:
- Stonewall Riots (1969)
- o Legalization of Same-Sex Marriage (2000s)

## d. Anti-Apartheid Movement (1950-1990s)

• Nelson Mandela led the fight against racial discrimination in South Africa.



• 1994 – Establishment of democracy in South Africa.

The social actions and movements of the 20th century played a crucial role in establishing justice, equality, and freedom. These movements transformed societies and continue to influence the 21st century

#### F. Social Action & Movements in the 21st Century

The 21st century has been marked by social, political, economic, and environmental challenges. Numerous social movements have emerged worldwide, focusing on human rights, equality, environmental protection, digital rights, and gender justice. These movements are often organized through social media and digital platforms, increasing their reach and impact.

## 1) Major Social Actions in the 21st Century

#### a. Women Empowerment & Gender Equality Movements

 Various global and local movements have emerged advocating for women's rights, safety, and equality.

#### • Key movements:

- #MeToo Movement (2017): A global campaign against workplace sexual harassment.
- **Nirbhaya Movement (2012):** Protests in India demanding stricter laws for women's safety.
- Women's Reservation Movement (2023): Implementation of 33% reservation for women in Indian Parliament and Assemblies.

## b. Rights of Dalits, Adivasis, and Marginalized Communities

• Movements against caste discrimination and social injustice.

## • Key movements:

- **Bhim Army Movement (2015-2020):** Fighting for Dalit rights and protection.
- CAA-NRC Protests (2019-2020): Demonstrations against the Citizenship Amendment Act in India.



• Adivasi Rights Movement: Struggles for land, forest, and water rights under the Forest Rights Act (2006).

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

#### c. Labor & Farmer Movements

- Movements advocating for the rights of workers and farmers.
- Key movements:
- Farmers' Protest (2020-2021): One of the largest protests in India against three farm laws.
- Workers' Rights Movements: Demand for fair wages, social security, and labor rights.

#### d. Environmental & Climate Change Movements

- Protests and activism for environmental protection and against climate change.
- Key movements:
- Greta Thunberg's "Fridays for Future" (2018): A global climate strike movement.
- Narmada Bachao Andolan (continued after 2000): Opposing displacement due to dam construction in India.
- Stop Adani Movement (2017-2022): Protests against coal mining projects in Australia.

## e. Digital Rights & Internet Freedom Movements

- Protests against internet censorship and digital surveillance.
- Key movements:
- Net Neutrality Movement (2015-2017): Campaigns in India and the US to ensure free and open internet.
- **Pegasus Spyware Scandal (2021):** Protests against digital surveillance and privacy violations.
- #SaveTheInternet Campaign (2015): Advocacy for online freedom of expression.



## f. LGBTQ+ Rights Movements

• Advocacy for the rights of LGBTQ+ individuals, including samesex marriage and gender identity recognition.

#### • Key movements:

- **Decriminalization of Section 377 in India (2018):** A historic judgment removing homosexuality from criminal offenses.
- **Pride Parades & LGBTQ+ Rights Movements:** Ongoing global efforts for equality and inclusion.

## 2) Global Social Movements in the 21st Century

#### a. "Occupy Wall Street" Movement (2011)

• A protest against economic inequality and corporate greed in the US.

#### b. "Black Lives Matter" Movement (2013-2020)

• A global movement against racial discrimination and police brutality, originating in the US.

## c. "Arab Spring" Movement (2010-2012)

• A series of pro-democracy uprisings in the Middle East and North Africa against authoritarian regimes.

## d. "Hong Kong Protests" (2019-2020)

• Pro-democracy protests against China's authoritarian policies in Hong Kong.

Social actions and movements in the 21st century have become more organized, digital, and global.

- The rise of social media and the internet has accelerated the impact and reach of these movements.
- Key issues include environmental protection, women's rights, racial equality, labor rights, and digital freedom.



• These movements aim to create a just, equitable, and sustainable world.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

#### G. Difference Between Social Action and Social Movement

Basis	Social Action	Social Movement
Definition	It is an organized and planned activity aimed at bringing positive change in society.	It is a collective effort by a large section of society to bring about social, political, or economic change.
Main Objective	To work for social justice, equality, and empowerment of marginalized groups.	To spread public awareness about a specific issue and push for policy or societal change.
Process	It is planned and executed systematically by an individual or organization.	It usually starts spontaneously and gradually takes an organized form.
Leader- ship	Can be led by an individual or an organization.	Operates under the leadership of an organization, group, or ideology.
Time- frame	It can be short-term or long- term, but usually for a limited duration.	It can last for an extended period and evolve gradually.
Examples	- Gandhi's Satyagraha and Civ- il Disobedience Movement (as Social Action)	

- Efforts to implement reservations for Dalits. Indian Independence Movement
- Narmada Bachao Andolan
- Women Empowerment Movements |

## **Key Differences**

- a. Social action is a structured effort to address a specific social issue, whereas social movement is a broader and widespread public movement.
- b. Social action is often carried out by the government, NGOs, or individuals, whereas social movement is driven by collective public participation.



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

c. Social movements can last longer and sometimes take a revolutionary form, whereas social action is more organized and goal-oriented.

Both social action and social movements aim to bring social change, but their strategies, structure, and scope differ significantly.

#### 1.4 Social Action as a Method of Social Work

#### **Methods of Social Action**

Social action is an essential method of social work aimed at promoting social justice, equality, and structural change. It is implemented through various means, including mass movements, legal action, policy advocacy, and public awareness campaigns.

#### 1.4.1 Major Methods of Social Action

#### (1) Mass Mobilization: A Key Method of Social Action

Mass mobilization is a crucial method of social action in which a large section of society is organized to address social, economic, or political issues. People come together to conduct protests, rallies, demonstrations, and campaigns to bring their demands to the attention of the government, administration, or other influential sectors of society.

## A. Key Elements of Mass Mobilization

- **1. Organization:** A strong organization and leadership are essential for an effective movement.
- **2.** Collective Participation: Widespread public participation strengthens the movement.
- **3. Awareness Generation:** People are educated about the issue's seriousness and their rights.
- **4. Non-Violent Protest:** Most mass movements follow the principles of non-violence and Satyagraha.
- **5. Media & Publicity:** Newspapers, television, social media, and digital platforms play a significant role in gaining support for the movement.

## **B.** Types of Mass Movements

1. Social Movements: Focused on issues like caste discrimination,



gender equality, and environmental protection.

- **Examples:** Chipko Movement (Forest Conservation), Narmada Bachao Andolan (Environmental and Displacement Issues).
- **2. Political Movements:** Related to democratic rights, electoral reforms, and political policies.
- **Examples:** Indian Independence Movement, Jayaprakash Narayan's Total Revolution Movement.
- **3. Economic Movements:** Related to labor rights, minimum wages, land reforms, and poverty alleviation.
- **Examples:** Telangana Peasant Movement, Farmers' Protest (2020-21).
- **4. Cultural Movements:** Aimed at bringing cultural and ideological changes in society.
- Examples: Dalit Panther Movement, Women Empowerment Movement.

## C. Major Mass Movements in India

<b>Movement Name</b>	Year	Main Objective
Chipko Movement	1973	Protection of forests and prevention
		of deforestation
Narmada Bachao	1985	Prevention of displacement and en-
Andolan		vironmental conservation
Indian Indepen-	1857-1947	Freedom from British rule
dence Movement		
<b>Total Revolution</b>	1974-75	Fight against corruption and protec-
Movement		tion of democracy
Farmers' Protest	2020-21	Opposition to farm laws and protec-
		tion of farmers' rights
#MeToo Movement	2018	Awareness against sexual harass-
		ment of women

# **D.** Challenges in Mass Mobilization

- **1. Government Suppression:** Authorities may attempt to suppress movements.
- **2. Time-Consuming:** Mass movements often take a long time to achieve success.

- NOTES -



Introduction of Social Action and

Movements

- **3.** Lack of Public Support: Some movements fail to gain widespread public support.
- **4. Media Censorship:** The media may not always portray the movement accurately.
- **5. Internal Conflicts:** Differences and disagreements within the movement can create obstacles.

Mass movements are an effective means of social change, amplifying the voices of marginalized and disadvantaged groups. When people unite against injustice and inequality, they not only seek solutions to their problems but also contribute to positive transformations in society.

#### (2) Conscientization: A Method of Social Action

Conscientization is a significant method of social action aimed at making people aware of their problems, rights, and social injustices. This method primarily focuses on raising awareness among marginalized, oppressed, and illiterate communities, enabling them to organize and fight for their rights.

#### **Definition**

Conscientization is the process through which people understand their social, economic, and political realities and work collectively to change those circumstances.

## **Proponent**

Brazilian educator Paulo Freire developed the concept of Conscientization, which he referred to as "Critical Consciousness." It means empowering people to understand and transform their realities.

## A. Key Elements of Conscientization

- 1. Social Awareness: Making people conscious of their social conditions and problems.
- **2. Critical Thinking:** Identifying inequalities and injustices in society.
- **3. Dialogue:** Engaging in open discussions to understand people's thoughts and experiences.



**4. Self-Motivation:** Encouraging individuals to become self-reliant and proactive in fighting for their rights.

**5. Active Participation:** Organizing people for collective action to bring about social change.

#### - NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

#### **B.** Methods of Conscientization

#### 1. Education & Training:

- Literacy campaigns, workshops, and educational sessions.
- Girls' education and vocational training programs.

#### 2. Media & Communication:

- Awareness campaigns through social media, newspapers, radio, and television.
- Posters, slogans, documentary films, and street plays.

#### 3. Dialogue & Discussion:

- Village meetings, open discussions, and debates.
- Leadership development programs for youth and women.

#### 4. Culture & Art:

- Social messages through street plays, folk songs, paintings, and literature.
- Art performances on topics like feminism, casteism, and child labor.

## 5. Campaigns & Mass Movements:

- Water conservation, child marriage prevention, and health awareness campaigns.
- Movements related to human rights and women's empowerment.

## C. Examples of Conscientization in India

Campaign/Movement	Year	Objective
-------------------	------	-----------



National Literacy Mis-	1988	Educating adults and making them
sion		self-reliant
Beti Bachao, Beti Padhao	2015	Promoting girls' education and gender equality
Swachh Bharat Abhiyan	2014	Creating awareness about cleanliness and hygiene
#MeToo Movement	2018	Raising awareness about sexual harassment against women
Chipko Movement	1973	Promoting environmental conservation and afforestation

#### **D.** Challenges in Conscientization

- 1. Lack of Education: Many communities remain unaware of their problems due to illiteracy.
- **2. Social Barriers:** Issues like caste discrimination, gender bias, and religious intolerance can hinder the process of conscientization.
- **3.** Lack of Financial Resources: Awareness campaigns often face a shortage of necessary funds.
- **4. Misuse of Media:** Sometimes, media is used to spread misinformation instead of promoting awareness.
- **5. Government Suppression:** In some cases, governments or powerful groups attempt to suppress social activists and movements.

Conscientization is an effective method of social change that empowers people to understand and transform their conditions. It is a powerful tool to secure rights for marginalized sections of society and fight against inequality, injustice, and exploitation.

## (3) Advocacy: A Method of Social Action

Advocacy is a powerful method of social action aimed at effectively raising the voices of marginalized, deprived, and oppressed sections of society while safeguarding their rights. This method influences policymakers, government agencies, and civil society to achieve justice, equality, and social change.

#### **Definition:**

Advocacy is a process through which the problems of a specific group, community, or society are highlighted to protect their rights and interests.



#### **Key Objectives:**

- Ensuring justice for marginalized people.
- Bringing reforms in policies and laws.
- Promoting social and political change.
- Empowering deprived communities.

#### A. Key Elements of Advocacy

- **1. Problem Identification:** Clearly identifying the social issue or concern that needs advocacy.
- **2. Research & Fact Collection:** Gathering data and evidence to strengthen the advocacy efforts.
- **3. Policy & Legal Knowledge:** Understanding relevant laws, policies, and procedures to drive effective change.
- **4. Public Awareness:** Educating and sensitizing the public about the issue and engaging them in the cause.
- **5. Engagement with Authorities:** Establishing communication with policymakers and officials to influence decisions.
- **6. Media & Communication:** Using social media, newspapers, television, and radio to increase public support.

## **B.** Types of Advocacy

## 1. Individual Advocacy:

- Focuses on protecting the rights and concerns of an individual.
- Example: Legal aid for children rescued from child labor.

## 2. Community Advocacy:

- Highlights and addresses issues affecting a particular community.
- Example: Dalit rights movement, women empowerment campaigns.

## 3. Political Advocacy:

Influencing government and policymakers through lobbying and



discussions.

• Example: Right to Information (RTI) Act, reforms in education policy.

#### 4. Legal Advocacy:

- Seeking justice through legal procedures.
- Example: Public Interest Litigations (PILs), environmental law reforms.

#### 5. Media Advocacy:

- Using media platforms to generate public support.
- Example: #MeToo movement, climate change awareness campaigns.

## 6. International Advocacy:

- Raising awareness about human rights, environmental, and social justice issues on global platforms.
- Example: UNICEF's child rights protection, climate change agreements.

## C. Major Advocacy Movements in India

C. Major Mavocacy Movements in India			
<b>Movement/Cam-</b>	Year	<b>Objective</b>	
paign		-	
Right to Information	1990s	Ensuring transparency in governance	
(RTI) Movement		and access to information for the pub-	
		lic.	
#MeToo Movement	2018	Raising awareness about workplace	
		sexual harassment.	
Narmada Bachao	1985	Advocating against displacement and	
Andolan		for environmental conservation.	
<b>Dalit Rights Move-</b>	1990s	Legal and social reforms against caste-	
ment		based discrimination.	
Farmers' Protest	2020-	Demanding changes in agricultural	
	21	laws and protecting farmers' rights.	
LGBTQ+ Rights	2010s	Decriminalizing homosexuality and	
Movement		advocating for equal rights.	



#### D. Challenges in Advocacy

- 1. Resistance from Authorities: Policymakers and officials often oppose changes.
- **2.** Lack of Financial Resources: Effective advocacy requires financial support.
- **3. Social & Cultural Barriers:** Traditional beliefs and stereotypes hinder advocacy efforts.
- **4. Misuse of Media:** Issues can be misrepresented, diverting attention from real concerns.
- **5.** Lengthy Legal Procedures: Legal advocacy is often slow and time-consuming.

Advocacy is a crucial method of social action that strengthens the voices of the underprivileged and ensures justice. It is not just limited to policy and legal reforms but also serves as an effective tool for awareness and empowerment in society.

#### (4) Legal Action: A Method of Social Action

Legal action is an effective method of social action that utilizes the legal system to eliminate injustice, discrimination, and exploitation in society. It includes filing lawsuits in courts, submitting Public Interest Litigations (PILs), demanding amendments to laws, and providing legal aid.

#### **Definition:**

Legal action is a process through which social justice and human rights are protected by seeking recourse in courts, legislative bodies, and legal institutions.

## **Key Objectives:**

- Providing legal protection against injustice and exploitation.
- Safeguarding constitutional rights.
- Ensuring legal aid for vulnerable and marginalized communities.
- Bringing social change through Public Interest Litigations (PILs).

## A. Key Elements of Legal Action

1. Understanding of Laws & Constitution: Knowledge of existing laws and constitutional provisions is essential for seeking justice.

# - NOTES -



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

- **2. Protection of Rights:** Legal resolution of issues related to fundamental rights and social justice.
- **3. Judicial Intervention:** Filing lawsuits in courts to prevent injustice and demand policy amendments.
- **4. Legal Awareness:** Educating citizens about their rights and available legal remedies.
- **5. Organized Efforts:** Collaborating with social organizations, lawyers, and human rights activists.

## **B.** Types of Legal Action

#### 1. Public Interest Litigation (PIL):

- A petition filed in the High Court or Supreme Court by any citizen or organization in the public interest.
- Example: Environmental protection, human rights, anti-corruption petitions.

#### 2. Constitutional Remedies:

- Filing petitions under Articles 32 and 226 of the Constitution in case of fundamental rights violations.
- Example: Writ petitions like Habeas Corpus, Mandamus, Prohibition, etc.

## 3. Litigation:

- Filing a lawsuit in court against any injustice by an individual or organization.
- Example: Women's rights, labor laws, land disputes.

## 4. Legal Aid:

- Providing free legal assistance to poor and marginalized communities.
- Example: Free legal services for widows, Dalits, minorities, and laborers.

## 5. Policy Advocacy & Legal Reform:

• Recommending amendments to laws and proposing new policies.



• Example: Right to Information (RTI) Act, Domestic Violence Act.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

#### C. Major Legal Actions in India

Case/Petition	Year	Significance
Kesavananda Bharati	1973	Established the "Basic Structure"
Case		doctrine of the Constitution.
Anti-Manusmriti Legal	1950s	Enacted laws to abolish caste-based
Reforms		discrimination.
Vishnu Tiwari Case	2021	Highlighted the need for protection
		against false allegations and judicial reforms.
NALSA vs. Government	2014	Recognized the transgender com-
of India		munity as the "third gender."
Vishakha vs. State of	1997	Laid down guidelines to prevent
Rajasthan		sexual harassment at workplaces.
Shah Bano Case	1985	Recognized the right of Muslim women to alimony.
Supreme Court's Scrapping of Section 377	2018	Decriminalized homosexuality.

## **D.** Challenges in Legal Action

- 1. **Delayed Justice:** The slow judicial process in India causes cases to take years for resolution.
- **2. Financial Burden:** Legal proceedings are expensive, making it difficult for poor and vulnerable groups to seek justice.
- **3.** Lack of Legal Awareness: Many people are unaware of their rights and legal remedies.
- **4. Political & Bureaucratic Interference:** Government agencies and influential individuals often attempt to influence legal proceedings.
- **5.** Complex Judicial Procedures: The complexity of the legal system makes it difficult for ordinary citizens to access justice.

Legal action is a powerful tool for social change and justice. It plays a crucial role in ensuring justice for marginalized groups, influencing policy-making, and eliminating social injustices. However, several challenges need to be addressed through judicial reforms, legal literacy, and an efficient justice delivery system.



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

## (5) Policy Advocacy & Lobbying: A Method of Social Action

Policy advocacy and lobbying are effective methods of social action aimed at influencing policies and laws to bring necessary reforms in society. The primary objective is to protect the rights of marginalized communities, bring changes in government policies, and advocate for effective legislation.

#### **Definition:**

- **Policy Advocacy:** A strategic process through which civil society, non-governmental organizations (NGOs), activists, and public representatives demand policy or legislative changes from the government on specific social issues.
- **Lobbying:** Organized efforts to influence legislators, policymakers, and government officials to modify or implement policies.

## **Key Objectives:**

- Bringing improvements in social, economic, and political policies.
- Ensuring justice for vulnerable and marginalized communities.
- Encouraging public participation in policy-making.
- Establishing communication between the government and the public.

# A. Key Elements of Policy Advocacy & Lobbying

- **1. Issue Identification:** Determining which policy needs modification or improvement.
- **2. Data & Research:** Collecting facts, statistics, and evidence to support advocacy efforts.
- **3. Public Awareness Campaigns:** Using media, social media, and other platforms to engage people and gain support.
- **4. Engagement with Policymakers:** Meeting legislators, ministers, and government officials to discuss proposed policy changes.
- **5.** Legislative Efforts: Presenting proposed policy amendments in parliament through lawmakers.
- **6. Public Mobilization:** Organizing movements, signature campaigns, public meetings, and rallies to strengthen lobbying efforts.



7. Collaboration & Partnerships: Strengthening campaigns with support from civil society organizations, research institutions, and media.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

## **B.** Types of Policy Advocacy & Lobbying

### 1. Government Lobbying:

- Direct interaction with legislators, government agencies, and policymakers to advocate for policy changes.
- Example: Teacher unions lobbying for changes in the education policy.

## 2. Community-Based Lobbying:

- Organizing local communities to bring their issues to the government's attention.
- Example: Lobbying by tribal groups to protect their land rights.

### 3. Corporate Lobbying:

- Businesses and industry groups influencing policymakers to protect their commercial interests.
- Example: Industrial lobbying for modifications in environmental regulations.

# 4. International Lobbying:

- Engaging with international organizations such as the United Nations (UN), World Bank, and other global bodies to influence policies
- Example: International lobbying for climate change policies.

# 5. Citizen Lobbying:

- Policy change demands made by common citizens, social organizations, and NGOs.
- Example: Citizen lobbying for the Right to Information (RTI) Act.



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

### C. Major Policy Advocacy & Lobbying Examples in India

Movement/Campaign	Year	Objective
Right to Information (RTI)	1990s	Ensured government transparen-
Movement		cy and public access to informa-
		tion.
Mid-Day Meal Scheme	2001	Implemented policies to improve
		children's nutrition and education
		in schools.
Nirbhaya Law (Criminal	2013	Introduced stricter laws for wom-
Law Amendment Act, 2013)		en's safety.
LGBTQ+ Rights Movement	2018	Advocated for the removal of
		Section 377 and legal recognition
		of LGBTQ+ rights.
Plastic Ban Policy	2019	Implemented restrictions on sin-
		gle-use plastics for environmen-
		tal protection.
Forest Rights Act	2006	Enacted laws to secure land
		rights for indigenous tribes.

## D. Challenges in Policy Advocacy & Lobbying

- **1. Resistance from Policymakers:** Governments and officials may be reluctant to accept changes.
- **2.** Lack of Financial Resources: Advocacy and lobbying campaigns require funding, which many organizations lack.
- **3. Political Interference**: Political pressure often obstructs lobbying efforts.
- **4.** Lack of Public Awareness: Educating people on the necessity of policy changes can be challenging.
- **5. Media Manipulation:** Some lobbying groups misuse the media to spread misinformation.

Policy advocacy and lobbying are powerful tools for driving social change. They serve as a bridge between the government and society, facilitating policy modifications and social reforms. However, challenges such as political resistance, financial constraints, and lack of awareness must be tackled through transparency, public support, and strategic planning.

## (6) Non-Violent Resistance: A Method of Social Action



Non-violent resistance is a significant method of social action that seeks to challenge injustice, discrimination, exploitation, and oppression without resorting to violence. It focuses on bringing social and political

change through peaceful means such as Satyagraha, non-cooperation, sit-

ins, rallies, and boycotts.

Social Action and Movements

#### **Definition:**

Non-violent resistance is a process in which people protest against social injustice and oppressive policies using peaceful methods, exerting moral pressure on the government or administration.

## **Key Objectives:**

- To struggle against injustice and exploitation peacefully.
- To promote moral and constitutional values in society.
- To resolve conflicts through dialogue and consensus rather than violence.
- To hold those in power accountable through non-violent means.

## A. Key Elements of Non-Violent Resistance

- **Satyagraha:** A method developed by Mahatma Gandhi that opposes injustice based on truth and non-violence.
- 2. Moral Force: Using public support to compel the government and authorities to yield morally.
- 3. Mass Participation: Encouraging widespread involvement in peaceful movements.
- 4. Long-Term Strategy: Maintaining patience and persistence in the protest.
- 5. Peaceful Methods: Demanding change without resorting to violence.

# **B.** Types of Non-Violent Resistance

#### 1. Civil Disobedience:

- Peacefully violating unjust laws.
- Example: The Dandi March (Salt Satyagraha) in 1930 against the British salt laws.



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

## 2. Non-Cooperation Movement:

- Refusing to cooperate with the government.
- Example: The Non-Cooperation Movement of 1920, where Indians refused to collaborate with British rule.

## 3. Sit-Ins & Hunger Strikes:

- Expressing dissent through peaceful demonstrations and hunger strikes.
- Example: Mahatma Gandhi's fasts and Anna Hazare's anti-corruption hunger strike.

### 4. Boycott:

- Economic, social, and political boycotts against exploitative systems.
- Example: The Swadeshi Movement, which promoted boycotting foreign goods.

#### 5. Protests & Marches:

- Large gatherings where people peacefully express their demands.
- Example: The Narmada Bachao Andolan (Save Narmada Movement) through peaceful protests.

# 6. Constructive Program:

- Efforts to bring positive change in society rather than just protesting.
- Example: Gandhi's Khadi Movement and promotion of rural industries.

# C. Major Examples of Non-Violent Resistance in India

Movement/Resistance	Year	Objective
Salt Satyagraha (Dandi	1930	Peaceful protest against British
March)		salt laws.



Non-Cooperation Movement	1920	Peaceful non-cooperation with British rule.
Quit India Movement	1942	Non-violent resistance to force the British to leave India.
Chipko Movement	1973	Environmental protest against deforestation.
Narmada Bachao Andolan	1985	Fight for the rights of displaced people due to dam construction.
RTI Movement	1990s	Peaceful advocacy for the Right to Information (RTI) Act.
Anna Hazare's Lokpal Movement	2011	Anti-corruption movement demanding a strong Lokpal Bill.

Social Action and Movements

## D. Challenges in Non-Violent Resistance

- 1. **State Repression:** Many peaceful movements face suppression by the government.
- **2. Slow Process:** Non-violent resistance often takes a long time to bring change.
- **3. Difficult Mass Mobilization:** Mobilizing large-scale participation in peaceful protests can be challenging.
- **4. Need for Media & Publicity:** Media support is crucial to making movements effective.
- **5. Political Interference:** Political groups sometimes exploit non-violent movements for their own interests.

Non-violent resistance is an effective method of bringing positive social change. Leaders like Mahatma Gandhi, Martin Luther King Jr., and Nelson Mandela used this approach to achieve historic transformations. However, for this method to succeed, patience, organized efforts, and widespread public support are essential.

# (7) Collaborative Action: A Method of Social Action

Collaborative action is an effective method of social action in which various organizations, the government, civil society, and communities work together to solve social problems. This method focuses on bringing structural changes to society by uniting different stakeholders and promoting cooperation and collective efforts.



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

#### **Definition:**

Collaborative action is a process in which different social groups, organizations, and the government cooperate to achieve a shared goal.

### **Key Objectives:**

- To pool resources and capabilities for solving social issues.
- To promote long-term and sustainable social change.
- To empower communities and ensure their active participation.
- To implement policy reforms through partnerships between governmental and non-governmental organizations (NGOs).

### A. Key Elements of Collaborative Action

- 1. **Partnership:** Establishing cooperation between various organizations, government bodies, and civil society.
- **2. Resource Sharing:** Combining financial, technical, and human resources to develop solutions.
- **3. Community Involvement:** Including local communities in decision-making processes.
- **4. Communication & Coordination:** Maintaining regular dialogue and collaboration among all partners.
- **5. Sustainable Development:** Ensuring long-term change rather than temporary relief.
- **6.** Collective Decision-Making: Considering the opinions of all stakeholders while making decisions.

# **B.** Types of Collaborative Action

#### 1. Government & NGO Collaboration:

- Joint efforts by governments and NGOs in social welfare programs.
- Example: NGO participation in government health missions.

# 2. Public-Private Partnership (PPP):

• Cooperation between private companies and the government for



social welfare initiatives.

• Example: Private sector involvement in the Swachh Bharat Mission.

Social Action and

Movements

## 3. Community-Based Collaboration:

- Local communities and organizations working together to resolve issues.
- Example: Self-Help Groups (SHGs) in rural development programs.

#### 4. International Collaboration:

- Cooperation between global organizations and local governments.
- Example: United Nations (UN) and the Indian government working on sustainable development projects.

#### 5. Academic & Research Collaboration:

- Partnerships between universities, research institutions, and policymakers.
- Example: Research-based collaborations in poverty eradication and education reform.

C. Major Examples of Collaborative Action in India

C. Major Daniples of Common active rection in Them			
Program/Movement	Year	Objective	Collaborating
			<b>Organizations</b>
Swachh Bharat Mis-	2014	Promote cleanliness	Government,
sion		and hygiene aware-	NGOs, Private
		ness	Companies
Mid-Day Meal	2001	Provide nutritious	Government,
Scheme		meals to school chil-	ISKCON, Ak-
		dren	shaya Patra
			Foundation
MGNREGA (Mahat-	2005	Provide 100 days of	Government,
ma Gandhi National		employment to rural	Gram Pancha-
Rural Employment		poor	yats, NGOs
<b>Guarantee Act)</b>			



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

Beti Bachao, Beti	2015	Promote girl child	Government,
Padhao Scheme		education and gender	Social Activists,
		equality	Media
<b>National Health Mis-</b>	2013	Provide healthcare	Government,
sion (NHM)		services to rural and	WHO, NGOs
		urban poor	
RTI (Right to Infor-	1990s	Ensure transparency	NGOs, Citizen
mation) Movement		in governance	Groups, Judicia-
			ry
<b>Water Conservation</b>	2019	Address water crisis	Government,
Campaigns		through citizen par-	NGOs, Scientific
		ticipation	Community

# D. Challenges in Collaborative Action

- **1.** Lack of Coordination Among Stakeholders: Sometimes, there is a lack of alignment between organizations and the government.
- **2. Financial Constraints:** Adequate funding is necessary for collaborative projects.
- **3. Policy Barriers:** Government policies can sometimes hinder collaborative efforts.
- **4. Political Interference:** Political agendas may influence collaborative initiatives.
- **5.** Lack of Community Awareness: Raising awareness is crucial for the success of collaborative action

Collaborative action is an effective way to bring social change by ensuring the joint participation of various organizations and communities. Instead of relying on a single group or organization, this method unites all stakeholders to create sustainable and positive transformations in society. However, its success depends on coordination, transparency, and a long-term vision.

# (8) Media & Digital Campaigns: A Method of Social Action

Media and digital campaigns are an effective method of modern social action that utilizes traditional and digital media to raise public awareness, influence policy changes, and mobilize public support for social issues. This method focuses on disseminating information, encouraging public participation, and enabling rapid communication to bring positive societal change.



#### **Definition:**

Media and digital campaigns refer to the process of using newspapers, television, radio, social media, and digital platforms to generate public awareness and support for social issues.

Social Action and Movements

# **Key Objectives:**

- Bringing social issues into the mainstream and increasing public awareness
- Pressuring the government and administration for policy reforms.
- Uniting different sections of society on a common platform to enhance cooperation.
- Spreading information on a large scale through digital tools.
- Strengthening social movements and encouraging public participation.

# A. Key Elements of Media & Digital Campaigns

- **1. Effective Information Dissemination:** Focusing on social issues using accurate facts and data.
- **2. Active Public Engagement:** Involving citizens, organizations, and policymakers.
- **3. Virality & Instant Communication:** Spreading awareness rapidly through social media.
- **4.** Creativity & Innovation: Using engaging graphics, videos, and infographics.
- **5. Data & Research:** Supporting arguments with credible research and statistics.
- **6.** Narrative Building: Developing compelling stories around issues that resonate with people.

# B. Types of Media & Digital Campaigns

# 1. Social Media Campaigns:

Raising awareness through platforms like Facebook, Twitter, Insta-



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

- gram, YouTube, and LinkedIn.
- Example: #MeToo movement, #SaveTheInternet campaign.

## 2. News Media Campaigns:

- Reporting and discussing social issues through TV, radio, and newspapers.
- Example: Extensive media coverage following the Nirbhaya case.

#### 3. Online Petitions:

- Gathering public support through platforms like Change.org and Avaaz.org.
- Example: Petitions against plastic pollution.

## 4. Blogs & Alternative Media:

- Personal and collective blogs, podcasts, and independent media platforms.
- Example: Dalit Camera, an independent media platform on Dalit issues.

# 5. Influencer & Celebrity Endorsement:

- Support from prominent figures for social campaigns.
- Example: Deepika Padukone's "Live Love Laugh" mental health campaign.

# 6. Advertisements & Public Service Announcements (PSAs):

- Public interest advertisements by governmental and non-governmental organizations.
- Example: Amitabh Bachchan's "Do Boond Zindagi Ke" message for the Pulse Polio campaign.

# **Digital Activism:**

• Cyber protests, trending hashtags, online boycotts, and virtual demonstrations.



• Example: #BlackLivesMatter, #FridaysForFuture.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

## C. Major Media & Digital Campaigns in India

Campaign	Year	Objective	Medium
Nirbhaya Movement	2012	Demand for wom- en's safety and strict- er laws	News Media, Social Media
#MeToo India	2018	Raising awareness about workplace sexual harassment	Twitter, Instagram
Swachh Bharat Abhiyan	2014	Promoting cleanliness and hygiene	TV Advertise- ments, Social Media
#SaveTheInternet (Net Neutrality Campaign)	2015	Preserving internet freedom	Online Petitions, Social Media
Beti Bachao, Beti Padhao	2015	Promoting gender equality and girl child education	Government Advertisements, Digital Media
<b>Aarey Forest Conservation Movement</b>	2019	Gaining public sup- port for environmen- tal conservation	Twitter, YouTube
Lokpal Movement (Anna Hazare's Anti-Corruption Movement)	2011	Demand for anti-cor- ruption laws	News Media, Social Media
COVID-19 Awareness Campaign	2020	Encouraging mask-wearing and vaccination	Government Advertisements, Social Media

# D. Challenges in Media & Digital Campaigns

- 1. Fake News & Misinformation: The spread of false information can mislead public opinion.
- 2. Surveillance & Censorship: Governments and social media companies may censor certain campaigns.
- **3. Digital Divide:** Limited access to digital campaigns for rural and marginalized communities.
- 4. Trolling & Online Harassment: Social activists and campaign-



Introduction of Social Action and Movements

ers may face cyberbullying.

**5. Potential Short-Term Impact:** Some digital campaigns may gain attention temporarily but fail to create long-term change.

Media and digital campaigns have become a cutting-edge and effective tool for social action. By leveraging the power of traditional media and digital technology, public awareness can be raised, and policy reforms can be influenced. However, their success depends on credibility, factual accuracy, and a long-term perspective.

Social action is a powerful instrument for achieving justice and equality in society. It is implemented through various methods, including mass movements, legal action, policymaking, and public awareness campaigns. Proper use of these methods can bring significant and positive social change.

# Unit - 3

#### 1.5 Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model

Paulo Freire was a renowned Brazilian educator and philosopher who made significant contributions to the fields of education and social change. Born on September 19, 1921, in Brazil, he dedicated his life to the education and empowerment of marginalized and disadvantaged groups. His Conscientization Model focuses on raising awareness among the oppressed and marginalized sections of society, enabling them to recognize their conditions and work towards social transformation.

# **Concept of the Model**

Freire believed that the traditional education system serves the interests of the ruling class and keeps the lower classes subordinate. He referred to this approach as "banking education," where teachers unilaterally transfer knowledge, and students passively receive it. In contrast, he advocated for "problem-posing education," which encourages dialogue, critical thinking, and social awareness.

# **Key Components of the Conscientization Model**

# 1. Conscientization of the Oppressed Class

The concept of conscientization is central to Paulo Freire's model. It is a process in which the oppressed and marginalized groups become aware of their socio-economic and political realities and organize themselves to bring about change.



### **Meaning and Definition**

According to Freire, conscientization is not merely about acquiring education but about developing a critical understanding of one's circumstances. It helps individuals realize how they are being exploited within a particular system and how they can fight for their rights.

**Main Characteristics** 

- 1) Identification of Social Realities This process helps marginalized groups understand that their difficulties are not just personal struggles but are linked to broader social and political structures.
- 2) Critical Thinking Instead of merely providing information, this model encourages people to ask questions, think critically, and make informed decisions.
- **3)** Understanding Power and Exploitation Mechanisms Through this process, individuals realize that their situation is not just a result of their own limitations but is also influenced by social inequalities and exploitative policies.
- 4) Freedom and Resistance As the oppressed class recognizes their condition, they begin to organize and resist oppression, working toward transformation.

# **Examples**

- **Dalit Awareness Movement** Dr. B.R. Ambedkar's movement in India is an example of how Dalits were made aware of their rights and encouraged to fight against oppression.
- Women Empowerment Programs Through Self-Help Groups (SHGs), women are educated about their financial and social rights, leading to their empowerment.
- **Farmers' Movements** Educating farmers about agricultural policies and their rights to encourage them to advocate for fair treatment.

Conscientization is not just limited to education; it is a social and political transformation process. It empowers oppressed communities, making them self-reliant and enabling them to play an active role in society.



#### 2. Dialogue

Dialogue is a crucial component of Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model, where education is seen not as a mere transmission of information but as a participatory and interactive learning process.

### **Concept of Dialogue**

According to Freire, dialogue is not just a means of communication but a tool for education and social transformation. It is based on equality, participation, and mutual respect between learners and educators. The traditional education system views teachers as the sole sources of knowledge and students as passive recipients, but Freire rejects this system and presents education as an active dialogue.

## **Characteristics of Dialogue**

- 1) Based on Equality It maintains a balance of power between teachers and students, making the learning process bilateral.
- 2) Encourages Critical Thinking Dialogue is not just about exchanging information but also about encouraging learners to ask questions, reflect, and think critically about social issues.
- 3) Experience-Based Learning Freire emphasized that education must incorporate people's lived experiences, enabling them to understand their realities better and take action for social change.
- **4) Democratic and Participatory Process** Instead of issuing one-sided instructions, dialogue fosters open discussions, helping individuals collectively find solutions to their problems.

# **Importance of Dialogue**

- **Revolutionizes Education** It eliminates the rote learning system and promotes an active and engaging learning process.
- **Empowers Individuals** It enables people to understand and challenge social injustices and exploitation.
- Contributes to Social Change Through dialogue, individuals can express their thoughts and work collectively towards social transformation.

# **Examples**



- Village Assemblies and Community Meetings Open discussions on various local issues to find collective solutions.
- Women's Self-Help Groups (SHGs) Establishing dialogue among women on economic and social issues, leading to empowerment.
- Labor and Farmers' Movements Using dialogue to educate laborers and farmers about their rights and mobilizing them for collective action.

Dialogue is a powerful tool for education and social change. It not only makes people aware of their problems but also helps them find solutions and build collective strength. Freire's idea continues to be effectively applied in social movements, community development, and public education campaigns worldwide.

## 3. Praxis (Active Participation)

Praxis is a central component of Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model. It emphasizes not just understanding but the combination of reflection and action. According to Freire, mere contemplation does not lead to change; rather, applying thought into action is essential.

# **Concept of Praxis**

Freire defined "Praxis" as:

"Praxis is reflection and action upon the world in order to transform it."

This means that people should not just recognize their problems and remain passive; they must take concrete steps toward solutions.

# **Key Elements of Active Participation**

- 1) Reflection Understanding one's socio-economic and political condition and recognizing the need for change.
- 2) Action Implementing the acquired knowledge to take tangible steps against social injustice.
- 3) Continuous Process Praxis is not a one-time event but an ongoing cycle of learning, thinking, and acting.
- **4) Organized Efforts** Social change is not just an individual effort but requires collective struggles and movements.

- NOTES -



### **Importance and Impact**

- Makes Education Revolutionary It transforms education from a mere process of information transfer to a tool for empowerment and social change.
- **Organizes Oppressed Groups** When people understand their reality and take action, they unite to resist oppression and fight for justice.
- Leads to Justice and Equality Praxis is not just about personal growth but also about initiating broader social and political transformations.

## **Examples**

- Women's Empowerment Movements Women who receive education begin to fight for their rights and take leadership roles in society.
- **Farmers' Movements** Farmers, after understanding their problems, demand better policies and engage in protests.
- **Self-Help Groups (SHGs)** Rural women forming groups to become financially self-sufficient and drive social change.

Praxis is not just about acquiring knowledge but about transforming that knowledge into a tool for social change. When people think critically, understand their reality, and take action, they not only change their own lives but also contribute to societal transformation. This is the ultimate goal of Freire's educational philosophy.

#### 4. Freedom and Critical Consciousness

In Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model, freedom and critical consciousness represent the final and most crucial stage of education and social transformation. According to Freire, the goal of education is not merely to provide information but to awaken people to their oppression and social inequalities, leading them toward freedom and empowerment.

# **Concept of Critical Consciousness**

Freire defined "critical consciousness" as a state of awareness where individuals do not merely accept their circumstances but recognize the so-



cial, political, and economic factors that control their condition. This consciousness enables them to understand structures of power, injustice, and oppression and act against them.

**Three Levels of Critical Consciousness** 

Freire categorized critical consciousness into three levels:

## 1) Semi-Intransitive Consciousness:

- At this stage, an individual perceives only their immediate personal needs and problems, without understanding the broader social structures influencing them.
- Example: A poor farmer who believes his poverty is due to his lack of hard work, rather than recognizing that land reform policies and social inequality play a role.

#### 2) Naive Transitive Consciousness:

- Here, an individual gains some awareness of their social condition but does not apply deep critical thinking to challenge it.
- They often attribute their struggles to personal fate or individual shortcomings rather than systemic oppression.
- Example: A laborer understands that he is poor but believes it is solely due to his luck or effort, not exploitative economic policies.

# 3) Critical Consciousness:

- This is the highest level of awareness, where individuals recognize the true causes of their oppression and take collective action for change.
- People at this stage question, challenge, and actively work toward social transformation.
- Example: An organized farmer or worker movement that understands the root causes of their struggles and demands their rights from the government and society.

#### Freedom and Its Role

According to Freire, freedom is not something that can be given; rather, it must be earned through education and awareness. When individuals

- NOTES -



Models of Social Action

develop critical consciousness, they become capable of challenging power structures, injustice, and oppressive systems.

### **Key Elements of Achieving Freedom**

- 1) Knowledge and Awareness Recognizing real-life conditions and understanding that freedom is both a personal and social process.
- 2) Dialogue and Participation Engaging in democratic discussions and collective actions to eliminate social inequalities.
- 3) Self-Reliance Rather than depending on others, individuals identify their rights and shape their own future.
- **4) Social Revolution and Change** When large groups of people develop critical consciousness, they become capable of bringing social and political transformation.

### **Examples**

- Women's Movements When women become aware of their rights and discrimination and collectively fight against them.
- **Dalit Empowerment** When marginalized communities understand their historical and social conditions and organize for equality and justice.
- Worker Struggles When laborers recognize their rights and raise their voices for fair wages and better working conditions.

Freedom and critical consciousness are not merely the ultimate goals of education but also the foundation of social transformation. When people learn to question, understand their reality, and take action, true freedom becomes possible. Freire's principles continue to inspire education, social movements, and empowerment programs worldwide.

#### 5. Conscientization or Critical Consciousness

The most essential element of Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model is Conscientization or Critical Consciousness. This process enables people to become aware of their social, political, and economic conditions and take action to transform them. The key aspect of this model is that individuals understand their social, economic, and political status and recognize how they are being exploited by a particular system. It is not limited to literacy alone but also develops the ability to understand social injustice and take



steps against it.

**Concept of Conscientization** 

Freire defined Conscientization as:

"Conscientization is the process of developing a critical awareness of one's social reality through reflection and action."

This means:

"Conscientization is the process in which individuals develop critical awareness of their social reality and actively work to change it."

It is not merely an educational process but an active social and political consciousness where people understand the root causes of their problems and organize to address them.

## **Components of Critical Consciousness**

- 1. Understanding Social Reality An individual does not see their condition as a personal problem but understands it within a broader social and political context.
- 2. Identifying Structures of Exploitation and Power People recognize how different systems (such as caste, class, gender, and economy) influence their lives and keep them trapped in a cycle of exploitation.
- **3. Critical Thinking** Instead of blindly accepting traditional beliefs and dominant ideologies, people question and analyze them.
- **4. Organized Participation and Change** Mere understanding is not enough; once individuals recognize their condition, they organize and fight against injustice.

#### Freire's Levels of Conscientization

Freire divided Conscientization into three levels:

# 1. Magical Consciousness

- At this stage, an individual believes their condition is a result of fate (destiny) and does not attempt to change it.
- Example: A poor farmer who believes that his poverty is due to bad luck rather than economic and social inequalities.

#### 2. Naïve Consciousness



- An individual recognizes their problems but sees them only on a personal level, without understanding their wider social causes.
- Example: A low-wage worker who blames only his employer for his poor working conditions but does not understand the larger economic structures that enable exploitation.

#### 3. Critical Consciousness

- This is the highest level of awareness, where an individual understands the broader social, political, and economic reasons behind their exploitation and takes collective action to change them.
- Example: Farmers who recognize the impact of government policies, corporate structures, and economic inequality and protest for reforms and rights.

## **Importance of Conscientization**

- **Empowerment** When individuals understand their real conditions, they become prepared to fight for their rights.
- Education as a Tool for Change Education is not just about providing information but a means of social transformation.
- Promoting Democratic Values People with critical thinking become better citizens and contribute to justice and equality in society.

Conscientization and Critical Consciousness are among the most powerful processes of social transformation. When people recognize exploitation and social inequality and organize to fight against them, they do not just transform their own lives but also create change in society as a whole. Freire's model continues to influence education, social movements, and empowerment initiatives worldwide.

# 6. Dialogue in Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model

Dialogue is a key component of Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model. According to Freire, dialogue is not just a method of communication or exchanging information, but a crucial tool for education, awareness, and social transformation.

# **Concept of Dialogue**

Freire criticized the traditional education system, which he referred to



Social Action and

Movements

- NOTES -

as the "Banking Model of Education." In this model, the teacher is the sole source of knowledge, and students are passive recipients of that knowledge.

In contrast, dialogue-based education is a participatory process, where both teachers and students learn and teach together.

Freire stated:

"Without dialogue, there is no communication, and without communication, there can be no true education."

This means that without dialogue, education cannot be meaningful or transformative.

Dialogue is not just a method of teaching, but it is also a foundation for democratic participation, critical thinking, and social change.

## **Characteristics of Dialogue**

- 1. Equality Maintains a balance of power between the teacher and the learner.
- 2. Critical Thinking Encourages students to question the existing system and adopt new perspectives.
- 3. Experience-Based Learning Connects education with students' real-life experiences.
- 4. Democratic Process Facilitates an exchange of ideas, allowing people to collectively discuss problems and find solutions.

# **Dialogue and Education**

Freire identified two types of education:

- 1. Banking Model of Education The teacher transmits knowledge, and students passively absorb it.
- 2. Dialogical Education The teacher and students work together, actively participating in the learning process.

In dialogical education, people share their experiences, analyze problems, and engage in collective problem-solving.

# Impact and Importance of Dialogue

Makes education revolutionary – Promotes self-awareness and



social transformation rather than just transmitting information.

- **A tool for empowerment** Enables individuals to express themselves and find solutions to their problems.
- Contributes to social change Encourages collective thinking and action for societal transformation.

## **Examples of Dialogue in Action**

- 1. Village Assemblies & Community Meetings Where people discuss problems and find collective solutions.
- **2. Women's Self-Help Groups (SHGs)** Where women empower themselves through discussions on rights and financial independence.
- **3.** Workers' and Farmers' Movements Where laborers and farmers organize and advocate for their rights through dialogue.

Dialogue is not just a method of education but also a powerful tool for social change. When people engage in dialogue, they understand their reality, question it, and find solutions, enabling both personal and societal transformation. Freire's concept remains highly relevant for democratic societies, empowerment, and social justice.

# 7. Empowerment in Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model

Empowerment is a central concept in Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model. It is not just about making an individual powerful, but about raising awareness against oppression and inequality at social, economic, and political levels and taking action against them.

# **Definition of Empowerment**

According to Freire:

"The more people become critically aware of their oppression, the more they are able to transform their reality."

This means:

"As people develop critical awareness of their oppression, they become more capable of changing their reality."

Empowerment is not limited to economic or educational progress; it also involves developing critical consciousness and encouraging active participation in social change.



Types of Empowerment in Freire's Model

- **1. Personal Empowerment** Development of self-confidence, decision-making ability, and independence.
  - **Example:** When an illiterate woman gains education and becomes financially self-sufficient.
- **2. Social Empowerment** Promoting equality, justice, and participation in society.
  - **Example:** When marginalized communities organize to fight for their identity and rights.
- **3. Economic Empowerment** Gaining access to income, employment, and financial resources.
  - **Example:** Women in rural areas achieving financial independence through Self-Help Groups (SHGs).
- **4. Political Empowerment** Participation in decision-making and influencing policies.
  - **Example:** Women contesting local elections and playing leadership roles in governance.

# **Examples of Empowerment in Action**

- Women's Empowerment When women gain education and financial independence, strengthening their social position.
- **Dalit & Tribal Empowerment** When marginalized communities fight for their rights and equality.
- Workers' Movements When laborers organize for better wages, working conditions, and rights.
- **Farmers' Movements** When farmers protest against unjust policies and demand reforms.

Empowerment is not just about individual freedom but a process of broad social change. When people understand their reality, analyze its causes, and take action, real empowerment takes place.

Freire's model remains relevant today in areas such as education, social justice, and democratic participation.



## 1.6 Role of Ideology in Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model

## **Definition of Ideology**

Ideology is a system of beliefs, values, and assumptions that shapes the structure and behavior of a society. It influences how people think, understand, and make decisions.

"Ideology is not just a set of ideas; it is a system that maintains power and control in society."

Freire argued that ideology can be used to legitimize oppression and injustice, but it can also serve as a means for social transformation and liberation.

## Role of Ideology

## 1) Maintaining Oppressive Structures

According to Freire's Conscientization Model, oppressive structures are created to maintain power, social inequality, and economic exploitation. These structures deprive people of their rights, suppress critical thinking, and prevent social change.

"Oppression is not just maintained by force, but by making the oppressed accept their condition as natural."

Ways in Which Oppressive Structures Are Maintained

# I. Education as a Tool of Oppression

- The traditional Banking Model of Education turns students into passive recipients of knowledge, preventing them from developing critical thinking skills.
- The ruling class uses education to impose its values and ideologies on society, reinforcing oppressive structures.
- Example: If the education system does not emphasize social justice and equality, people may accept inequality as natural.

# II. Ideology and Propaganda

- Media, religion, and cultural norms are used to establish and sustain oppressive ideologies.
  - Examples:
  - Caste System Lower castes are made to believe that they are inferior by birth.



• **Patriarchy** – Women are taught that their primary role is to take care of the family and children.

**Capitalism** – The poor are told that poverty is their personal failure rather than a result of systemic inequality.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

### III. Legal and Political Structures

- Governments and institutions often implement policies and laws that marginalize certain groups.
  - Examples:
  - Laws that restrict workers' rights.
  - Strategies that exclude women and Dalits from political representation.
  - Economic policies that favor big corporations over small businesses.

## IV. Economic Exploitation and Resource Control

- Oppressive structures deprive common people of access to economic resources, keeping them dependent on those in power.
- Examples:
- Farmers trapped in debt cycles that reinforce feudal land ownership.
- Laborers forced to work under poor conditions for minimal wages.

# V. Social and Cultural Oppression

- Cultural traditions are used to legitimize exploitation and inequality.
  - Examples:
  - Women are denied education and employment under the pretext of religious customs.
  - Social hierarchy is maintained by reinforcing notions of superiority and inferiority.

# **Breaking Oppressive Structures**

According to Freire, the development of Critical Consciousness (Con-



Models of Social Action

scientization) is essential to challenge and dismantle oppressive structures. This can be achieved through:

- **I. Transformative Education** Moving away from the Banking Model and adopting Dialogical Education.
- **II. Dialogue and Awareness** Encouraging discussions on social issues to help people recognize oppression.
- **III. Empowerment** Enabling marginalized groups (women, Dalits, Adivasis) to become self-reliant and aware of their rights.
- **IV. Organization and Struggle** Forming labor unions, farmer movements, and social organizations to fight injustice.
- V. Promoting Alternative Ideologies Spreading ideologies based on social justice, equality, and democracy.

Oppressive structures sustain inequality and injustice in society. Freire's Conscientization Model serves as an effective means to challenge these structures and empower the oppressed. By recognizing their reality, adopting a critical perspective, and engaging in collective struggle, people can break free from these oppressive structures and build a just society.

## 2) Developing Critical Consciousness

According to Paulo Freire, Critical Consciousness (Conscientização) is the ability to understand and act against oppression, inequality, and injustice in society. It is not just about acquiring information but about analyzing one's environment, recognizing oppressive structures, and actively participating in social change.

#### **Definition of Critical Consciousness**

"To acquire critical consciousness, people must first recognize the injustices around them and then act to change them."

Freire argued that the traditional education system (Banking Model of Education) makes people passive and dependent, whereas Dialogical Education encourages awareness, self-reliance, and motivation for social transformation.

# **Stages of Developing Critical Consciousness**

Freire suggested that critical consciousness develops in three stages:

# I. Magical Consciousness



At this stage, people believe their condition is due to fate or divine will. They do not understand the structures of society or the causes of their oppression.

• Examples:

- A farmer believes his poverty is due to bad luck, rather than systemic economic inequality.
- A woman considers domestic violence her destiny instead of recognizing it as patriarchal oppression.

#### II. Semi-Critical Consciousness

At this stage, people begin to recognize their problems but see them as personal or local issues rather than part of a broader social structure. They understand injustice but hesitate to take action.

## • Examples:

- A farmer realizes that government policies or natural disasters contribute to his poverty but does not yet connect it to economic inequality.
- A woman understands that she deserves education but is afraid to challenge patriarchal values.

#### III. Critical Consciousness

At this highest stage, individuals not only recognize their oppression but also analyze its social, economic, and political causes. They conclude that change is possible and that collective struggle is necessary.

# • Examples:

- A farmer understands that corporate influence and government policies cause his poverty, so he joins a farmers' movement.
- A woman realizes that domestic violence is a societal problem and begins advocating for women's rights.

# **Ways to Develop Critical Consciousness**

# I. Promoting Dialogue

Dialogue is not just about exchanging information but about developing new perspectives. Teachers and communities should encourage people to question and reflect on their life circumstances.

- NOTES -



## • Examples:

- Women in rural areas discuss their issues through Self-Help Groups (SHGs) to find solutions.
- Workers in labor unions openly discuss their rights and the exploitation they face.

## **II. Problem-Posing Education**

Instead of the Banking Model, where teachers deposit knowledge into passive students, education should encourage students to critically analyze real-life issues and find solutions.

## • Examples:

- Instead of just teaching history, schools should ask students, "Why does inequality exist today, and how can we change it?"
- Farmers should not only receive technical training but also be encouraged to reflect on their socio-economic challenges.

### III. Group Discussion and Collective Action

Moving beyond individual awareness to collective consciousness and organized struggle.

# • Examples:

- Dalit, labor, and farmer groups raise their voices collectively for their rights.
- Women's groups organize protests against domestic violence, dowry, and gender discrimination.

# IV. Using Media and Cultural Tools

Books, cinema, theater, and social media can serve as powerful tools for raising critical consciousness.

# • Examples:

- Safdar Hashmi's street play "Machine", which exposes worker exploitation.
- Films like "Pink" and "Article 15" that make audiences think critically about societal issues.



### V. Leadership Development and Political Participation

The ultimate goal of critical consciousness is to develop educated leaders who can bring social change.

## • Examples:

- Rural women contesting in Panchayat elections to participate in governance.
- Youth organizations and student movements advocating for social justice.

### **Examples of Critical Consciousness in Action**

### I. Women's Empowerment Movements

Women now understand that gender inequality is not natural but socially constructed. They actively participate in education, employment, and decision-making processes.

#### II. Farmers' Movements

Farmers realize that their struggles are not due to fate or weather alone but are linked to government policies. They have organized large-scale protests to demand their rights.

#### III. Dalit and Tribal Movements

Dalit and tribal communities are becoming aware of their legal and constitutional rights. They are actively challenging oppressive social structures.

Critical consciousness is not just about gaining knowledge but about understanding society, identifying inequalities, and taking action to eliminate them. Freire's ideas teach us that if people recognize the root causes of their struggles and collectively work towards change, a just and equal society is possible.

# 3) Contributing to Social Change

Social change refers to the gradual or revolutionary transformation of a society's structures, values, behaviors, and policies. Such changes are necessary to improve economic, political, cultural, and technological aspects of a society.

# - NOTES -



According to Paulo Freire, developing critical consciousness is essential for social change. This enables people to understand their oppression and actively participate in eliminating it.

# **Key Factors Contributing to Social Change**

#### I. The Role of Education

Education is not merely a means of providing information; it should be a tool for liberation. Through dialogical education, people can recognize their social realities and take steps toward transformation.

### • Impact:

- Educated citizens challenge social inequalities.
- Women and marginalized groups become aware of their rights.
- Scientific thinking and logical reasoning develop.

### II. Collective Awareness and Organization

Social change is possible when people perceive their personal problems as collective issues. Various social organizations and movements help people unite and work toward transformation.

## • Impact:

- Movements like farmers' movements, women's movements, and Dalit movements bring significant changes.
- Labor unions, Self-Help Groups (SHGs), and civil society organizations amplify the voices of the poor and marginalized.

# III. Leadership and Political Participation

To bring about social change, people must actively engage in politics. When marginalized communities increase their political participation, they can improve their socio-economic status.

# • Impact:

- Increased representation of women and Dalits in local governance (Panchayati Raj).
- Public opinion influences policies on social issues.
- Effective leadership fosters a more just society.



## IV. Influence of Media and Technology

Media and social media play a crucial role in discussing social issues and raising public awareness. Digital platforms facilitate social campaigns and protests.

### • Impact:

- Movements like #MeToo and Black Lives Matter have driven global change.
- Internet and mobile access in rural areas improve education and awareness of government schemes.

### V. Legal and Policy Reforms

Just laws are necessary for bringing social transformation. Social activists and organizations put pressure on governments to improve policies.

#### • Impact:

- Reservation policies in education and employment provide opportunities for Dalits and backward classes.
- Laws like the Right to Information (RTI) and MNREGA empower citizens

#### VI. Social Movements and Resistance

Oppressed communities often organize protests and movements to demand their rights. Such movements challenge not only governments but also deep-rooted social and cultural prejudices.

## • Impact:

- Women's empowerment movements have weakened practices like dowry and child marriage.
- Labor movements have improved wages and working conditions for workers.

# **Examples of Social Change**

# I. Women's Empowerment Movements:

- Increased participation of women in Self-Help Groups (SHGs) and local governance.
- Government initiatives like "Beti Bachao, Beti Padhao" raised

# - NOTES -



awareness about gender equality.

#### **II. Farmers' Movements:**

Farmers have protested for policy changes, compelling the government to modify agricultural laws.

### **III. Dalit and Tribal Rights Movements:**

 Movements advocating for reservation policies and constitutional rights for Dalits and tribal communities.

#### IV. Environmental and Water Conservation Movements:

Chipko Movement and Narmada Bachao Andolan contributed significantly to environmental conservation.

### **Ideology and Education**

Freire considered education a crucial medium for ideology.

- Traditional education (Banking Model) sustains the ideology of the ruling class, keeping students passive.
- Dialogical education fosters critical thinking, encouraging students to transform their realities.

Ideology is not just a theoretical concept but plays a crucial role in both social control and transformation. According to Paulo Freire, if education is used to challenge oppressive ideologies and develop new ideologies based on freedom and equality, it can become a foundation for true empowerment and liberation in society.

# 1.7 Saul Alinsky: A Radical Community Organizer

Saul Alinsky is regarded as the father of modern community organizing. He developed strategies to mobilize marginalized communities in American society, challenge power structures, and fight for social justice. His ideas deeply influenced the civil rights movement, labor unions, and social campaigns in the United States.

# Alinsky's Principles of Community Organizing

1) Radical Perspective



Alinsky advocated for deep and fundamental changes in social, political, and economic structures. This perspective does not rely on superficial reforms but instead focuses on challenging institutional injustices, exploitative systems, and power structures to bring about real transformation.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

## I. Saul Alinsky and the Radical Approach

Alinsky is considered a radical community organizer because he developed strategies to challenge traditional power structures. He believed that power belongs to those who have the courage to take it. The key aspects of his radical perspective include:

## • (A) Restructuring Power:

- Alinsky argued that power is never given; it must be taken.
- He taught the poor and marginalized that organized action is necessary to challenge power and claim their rights.
- Power balance shifts only when organized communities put pressure on political and social systems.

## • (B) Conflict & Confrontation:

- Alinsky's approach was non-violent, but he believed that social conflict and confrontation were necessary to challenge the establishment.
- According to him, change is possible only when the oppressed class directly confronts the policies and decisions of the ruling class.
- His philosophy was based on the principle:

"Power concedes nothing without a demand."

# • (C) Empowerment of Communities:

- Alinsky trained marginalized communities to fight for economic and political power.
- He educated workers and the poor about their rights and how to navigate the power system effectively.
- He considered education, organization, and collective action as the most powerful tools against exploitation.



Models of Social Action

# • (D) Critique of Traditional Institutions:

- Alinsky criticized the government, bureaucracy, religion, corporate businesses, and the capitalist system.
- He believed these institutions were designed to exploit the poor and needed to be challenged.
- He developed strategies to change the institutions that control power.

# II. Radical Approach vs. Reformist Approach

Feature	Radical Approach	Reformist Approach
Objective	Fundamental transforma-	Gradual improvement
	tion	
Strategy	Struggle, protest, organized pressure	Dialogue, adjustment, amendments
View on Power	Power must be seized and redistributed	Power must be negotiated with
Outcome	Structural transformation	Mild reforms within the system
Examples	Labor movements, Dalit movements, Women's liberation movements	Labor reforms, Reserva- tion policies, Education policy amendments

# III. Impact and Criticism of the Radical Approach

# • (A) Impact:

- Inspired civil rights movements, women's liberation movements, labor movements, and Dalit movements.
- Encouraged marginalized communities to actively participate in political and social transformation.
- Many progressive movements have adopted Alinsky's strategies to strengthen their struggles.

# • (B) Criticism:

- Critics argue that this approach is too confrontational and can disrupt social harmony.
- Some consider it anarchistic, as it promotes struggles against power structures.



• Many governments and ruling elites view this approach as a cause of instability.

Radicalism is not just about opposition; it is a strategy for organized struggle and real power transformation. Alinsky's approach teaches that if marginalized people unite and challenge power, they can achieve their rights and build a just society.

Social Action and Movements

### Alinsky's Contributions and Influence

### a) Impact on Civil Rights and Social Justice Movements

- Worked to empower Black communities and poor laborers.
- His ideas strongly influenced the Civil Rights Movement and labor unions in America.

### b) Influence on American Politics

- His ideas shaped the community organizing models of leaders like Barack Obama and Hillary Clinton.
- Many progressive organizations have adopted his organizing strategies.

### c) Inspiration for Radical Social Activists

- Many modern social activists and movement leaders follow Alinsky's strategies.
- Organizations working for labor rights, environmental protection, racial justice, and LGBTQ+ rights implement his principles.

Saul Alinsky was a radical community organizer who advocated for organized struggle and strategic pressure to challenge power structures. He taught marginalized communities that unity and political action are essential for gaining power and rights. His influence is still evident in various social movements that continue to fight for empowerment, resistance, and social justice.

# 2. Strategies of Rules for Radicals

Rules for Radicals is an influential book written in 1971 by American community organizer Saul Alinsky. It focuses on strategies for challenging power structures, organizing marginalized communities, and bringing about social change.

In this book, Alinsky outlined 13 key strategies that help community organizers and social activists adopt effective methods for fighting against



Models of Social Action

power and achieving change.

# 13 Strategies from Rules for Radicals

# (1) "Power is not only what you have but what the enemy thinks you have."

• Power is not just what you actually possess but also what your opponent believes you possess.

#### **Strategy:**

- Communities must not only increase their strength but also demonstrate how powerful they are.
- Collective support and organized efforts from the public can put pressure on opponents.

# (2) "Never go outside the experience of your people."

• Never operate beyond the experience of your people.

#### **Strategy:**

- Connect people with issues that are relevant and understandable to them.
- Instead of using complex policies and concepts, use examples from their daily lives.

# (3) "Wherever possible, go outside the experience of the enemy."

• Whenever possible, take your opponent outside their experience.

# **Strategy:**

- Adopt new strategies to make your opponent uncomfortable and confused.
- Use unexpected methods of resistance so that they struggle to respond.

# (4) "Make the enemy live up to their own book of rules."

• Force your opponent to follow the same rules they have created.

# **Strategy:**

- If the government or power structures talk about "morality" and "democracy," hold them accountable based on their own principles.
- **Example:** If the government claims "equal rights for all," demand equal rights for the oppressed communities.



(5) "Ridicule is man's most potent weapon."

Satire and ridicule are the most effective weapons of resistance.

**Strategy:** 

- Make fun of power structures and their decisions to rally public support.
- Use humor and satire to expose the weaknesses of the opposition.
- **Example:** Political cartoons and social media memes.

(6) "A good tactic is one that your people enjoy."

A good strategy is one that your people enjoy using.

**Strategy:** 

- If people enjoy the movement, they will stay engaged for a long time.
- Use art, music, drama, and social media campaigns to keep activism lively.

(7) "A tactic that drags on too long becomes a drag."

A strategy that lasts too long becomes boring.

**Strategy:** 

- Always bring fresh ideas and enthusiasm into the movement.
- Do not rely on a single method; keep evolving strategies.

(8) "Keep the pressure on, with different tactics and actions, and utilize all events of the period for your purpose."

Maintain constant pressure and use every situation to your advantage.

**Strategy:** 

- Keep protests and movements ongoing but in different ways.
- Take advantage of any political, social, or economic events to advance your cause.

(9) "The threat is usually more terrifying than the thing itself."

The perception of a threat is often scarier than the actual event.

**Strategy:** 

- Make the opposition believe that the movement is about to become massive.
- The mere threat of large-scale protest can sometimes be more ef-



- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



- MOLES -

Models of Social Action

fective than an actual protest.

# (10) "The major premise for tactics is the development of operations that will maintain a constant pressure upon the opposition."

• The core principle of strategy is to keep continuous pressure on the opposition.

### **Strategy:**

- To achieve anything from those in power, constant activism is necessary.
- If one movement loses momentum, start another one.

# (11)"If you push a negative hard enough, it will push through and become a positive."

• If you push a negative situation hard enough, it will turn into a positive outcome.

#### **Strategy:**

- If authorities try to suppress a protest, turn it into a bigger issue.
- Transform police brutality or repression into public outrage.

# (12) "The price of a successful attack is a constructive alternative."

• The cost of a successful attack is that you must offer a constructive alternative.

# **Strategy:**

- Do not just protest; also present what changes you seek.
- **Example:** Instead of just criticizing a bad policy, propose a better alternative.

# (13) "Pick the target, freeze it, personalize it, and polarize it."

• Identify a target, focus on it, personalize the issue, and strengthen opposition.

# **Strategy:**

- To make a movement more effective, target a specific person or institution.
- Personalize the issue so that it resonates emotionally with the public.
- Hold those in power publicly accountable for their actions.



#### 3. Concept of Community Organizing

Community organizing is a process through which people in a society come together to address their shared issues, take collective action, and strive for social change. It is a method of empowering marginalized communities that lack direct access to power and resources.

Social Action and Movements

#### 1) Definition of Community Organizing

According to Marion Krasny,

"Community organizing is a democratic process in which people organize to improve their living conditions, build power, and bring about change through collective action."

According to Saul Alinsky,

"The goal of community organizing is to challenge power imbalances and bring power into the hands of ordinary people."

## 2) Key Features of Community Organizing

- I. Collectivity and Solidarity: People unite and use their collective power
- **II. Redistribution of Power:** Focuses on granting rights to the weak and marginalized communities.
- III. Leadership and Participation: Leadership is developed within the community, and people actively engage in decision-making processes.
- IV. Emphasis on Social Justice and Equality: Fights against discrimination, inequality, and injustice.
- V. Self-Reliance and Empowerment: Communities are enabled to resolve their own issues.

# 3) Process of Community Organizing

Community organizing can be divided into five key stages:

#### I. Issue Identification & Awareness:

- Identify key issues and their root causes within the community.
- Raise awareness among community members about their situation and rights.



Models of Social Action

### II. Leadership Development & Organizing:

- Develop leadership within the community.
- Organize people collectively to work towards common goals.

# III. Strategy & Planning:

- Formulate collective strategies to address issues.
- Utilize legal, social, and political methods for problem-solving.

#### **IV. Action & Protest:**

• Apply pressure on power structures through protests, public meetings, petitions, and other means.

# V. Evaluation & Sustainability:

- Review efforts and outcomes.
- Plan new steps to tackle future challenges.

### 4) Types of Community Organizing

# I. Grassroots Organizing (Local-Level Organization)

Organizing small groups in villages and small communities.

**Examples:** Self-Help Groups (SHGs), women's groups, farmer organizations.

# II. Issue-Based Organizing

Focuses on a specific problem.

**Examples:** Environmental movements, women's empowerment campaigns.

# III. Political & Legal Organizing

Struggles for policy and legal reforms.

**Examples:** Civil rights movement, Dalit movement.

# IV. Labor & Industrial Organizing

- Advocates for workers' rights and better wages.
- Examples: Trade unions, labor associations.

# 5) Key Thinkers of Community Organizing

• Saul Alinsky – Author of Rules for Radicals, known for strategies to shift power balances.



• **Paulo Freire** – Focused on education and empowerment through the "awareness model."

• **Jane Addams** – Laid the foundation for community organizing for urban poor and social work.

Social Action and

Movements

#### 6) Importance of Community Organizing

- Amplifies the voices of the poor and marginalized.
- Increases access to power and resources.
- Influences policies and laws.
- Promotes social solidarity and cooperation.
- Strengthens both individual and collective empowerment.

Community organizing is an effective tool for social change, empowerment, and equality. It enables people to find solutions to their own problems, unite for collective power, and hold authorities accountable.

### Unit - 4

#### 1.8 Liberation Theology

Liberation Theology is a religious and philosophical movement that integrates Christian theology, social justice, and political activism. It emerged in Latin America during the mid-20th century and focused on bringing social change in favor of the poor and oppressed.

# **Definition of Liberation Theology**

According to Gustavo Gutiérrez,

"Liberation theology is not just about spiritual liberation but also advocates for freedom from social, political, and economic exploitation."

According to Leonardo Boff,

"This theology seeks to understand the suffering of the poor and work towards improving their lives."

# Origins and Background of Liberation Theology

- This movement emerged in Latin America during the 1960s and 1970s.
- The need was felt to resist widespread poverty, oppression, and



Models of Social Action

- dictatorial governments.
- In 1968, the Medellín Conference (Colombia) of the Catholic Church proposed a new direction for the liberation of the poor.
- Key thinkers of this ideology included Gustavo Gutiérrez (Peru), Leonardo Boff (Brazil), and Jon Sobrino (El Salvador).

# **Key Principles of Liberation Theology**

# 1) "God's Preferential Option for the Poor"

- This idea states that God always stands with the poor, oppressed, and exploited.
- Therefore, both the Church and society should work in favor of the poor.

### 2) Liberation is not just spiritual but also social and political

• Traditional Christian theology focused only on salvation from sin, but liberation theology believes that the poor should also be freed from poverty, injustice, and oppression.

# 3) Interpreting the Bible from the perspective of the poor and oppressed

- Traditional theology interpreted the Bible in favor of power structures.
- Liberation theology considers the poor as the central focus of the Bible and links it to the struggles of the oppressed.

# 4) "Conscientization" and Activism

- Inspired by Paulo Freire's "conscientization model," this theology emphasizes raising awareness among the poor about their rights and power.
- The Church should not be limited to worship alone but should actively work for the rights of the poor.

# 5) Social Justice and Revolutionary Change

- This ideology asserts that poverty and injustice are not individual faults but results of structural exploitation.
- Therefore, economic and political structures in society must be changed.



#### **Liberation Theology and Marxism**

#### **Similarities:**

- Both advocate for the liberation of the poor and oppressed.
- Both believe that exploitative structures must be dismantled.
- Both aim to create a society based on equality and justice.

#### **Differences:**

- Marxism is based on atheism, while liberation theology believes in Christianity.
- Marxism emphasizes revolution and conflict, whereas liberation theology prioritizes morality and social justice.

# Catholic Church and Liberation Theology

- In 1968, the Latin American Bishops' Conference (CELAM) supported working in favor of the poor.
- In 1984, the Vatican and Pope John Paul II opposed the radical Marxist interpretation of liberation theology and urged the Church to stay away from politics.
- Later, Pope Francis (2013–present) adopted this movement positively and emphasized that serving the poor should be the Church's priority.

# **Impact of Liberation Theology**

# Influence on social and political movements in Latin America

- Many movements for the rights of the poor arose in countries like Nicaragua, Brazil, and El Salvador.
- "Basic Christian Communities" (BCCs) were formed to organize the poor.

# Support for socialist and leftist movements

- Many religious leaders supported socialist movements against oppressive governments.
- In El Salvador, Archbishop Óscar Romero was assassinated for speaking out against the dictatorship.

Social Action and Movements



Models of Social Action

#### Global influence on other movements

- This ideology was adopted in Africa and Asia as well.
- In India, it influenced Dalit Theology and Feminist Theology.

#### **Criticism of Liberation Theology**

**Politicization:** The primary role of the Church is spiritual teaching, not political activism.

**Connection with Marxism:** Some critics see it as "Marxism within religion."

**Deviation from Church traditions:** Traditional Church authorities view it as a movement that causes instability and unrest.

Liberation theology does not focus solely on spiritual liberation but considers the struggle for justice for the poor, marginalized, and oppressed as an essential part of faith.

This ideology connects religion with social justice, envisioning a society where equality, compassion, and human rights are protected.

#### 1.9 Conclusion

Models of social action provide diverse frameworks for addressing social injustices and empowering marginalized communities. The Conscientisation model of Paulo Freire emphasizes critical awareness, education, and dialogue as tools for liberation, enabling people to challenge oppression and take collective action. The role of ideology in social action is fundamental, as it shapes movements, influences strategies, and determines the vision for societal change. Ideologies provide direction, whether rooted in socialism, democracy, human rights, or religious beliefs.

Saul Alinsky's approach as a radical community organizer highlights pragmatic activism, grassroots mobilization, and the empowerment of local communities to negotiate and challenge power structures. His strategies of direct action and confrontation have influenced modern organizing tactics. Similarly, Liberation Theology merges faith with activism, advocating for the rights of the poor and oppressed by interpreting religious teachings as a call for social justice. It has been instrumental in movements across Latin America and beyond.



Each of these models demonstrates the dynamic and multifaceted nature of social action. Whether through education, ideological influence, grassroots organizing, or faith-based advocacy, they collectively reinforce the power of communities in driving systemic change. By integrating these approaches, social activists and organizations can build inclusive, sustainable movements that challenge injustices and work toward a more equitable society.

Social Action and Movements

# 1.10 Comprehension Questions

#### 1. Paulo Freire's Conscientization Model

- 1) What does "conscientization" mean according to Paulo Freire?
- 2) What are the key components of Freire's conscientization model?
- 3) What is the role of "dialogue" in social transformation?
- 4) How does Paulo Freire's educational approach differ from traditional education?
- 5) What are the necessary steps to develop "critical consciousness"?

# 2. Role of Ideology

- 1) What is the role of ideology in social action?
- 2) Why is ideology considered important in social transformation?
- 3) What are the major ideologies that influence social movements?
- 4) How does ideology contribute to maintaining or breaking exploitative structures?
- 5) How does ideology help in developing critical consciousness?



Models of Social Action

### 3. Saul Alinsky: A Radical Community Organizer

- 1) How does Saul Alinsky define community organizing?
- 2) What are the key strategies mentioned in Rules for Radicals?
- 3) According to Alinsky, what methods can be used to shift the balance of power?
- 4) How do Alinsky's strategies differ from traditional community organizing approaches?
- 5) Is Alinsky's ideology still relevant today? Why?

### 4. Liberation Theology

- 1) What is the primary goal of Liberation Theology?
- 2) How did Gustavo Gutiérrez define Liberation Theology?
- 3) What does the phrase "God's Preferential Option for the Poor" mean?
- 4) What are the similarities and differences between Liberation Theology and Marxism?
- 5) What are the major criticisms faced by Liberation Theology?

# 5. Overall Questions

- 1) What are the similarities and differences between the ideas of Paulo Freire and Saul Alinsky?
- 2) Compare the role of the conscientization model and Liberation Theology in social transformation.
- 3) Is social action purely a political process, or is it also connected to



moral and religious aspects?

- 4) What are the key differences between Saul Alinsky's strategies and Freire's dialogue model?
- 5) How do ideology, conscientization, and community organizing collectively influence social change?

#### 1.11 References

- Alinsky, S. D. (1971). Rules for radicals: A pragmatic primer for realistic radicals. Random House.
- Freire, P. (1970). Pedagogy of the oppressed. Continuum.
- Gutiérrez, G. (1973). A theology of liberation: History, politics, and salvation. Orbis Books.
- Martin, D. (2008). The liberation theology debate. Wipf and Stock Publishers.
- Reisch, M. (2019). Social policy and social justice. Cognella.
- Smock, K. (2004). Democracy in action: Community organizing and urban change. Columbia University Press.
- Tilly, C. (2004). Social movements, 1768-2004. Paradigm Publishers.



**Social Action and** Movements



Social Movements

# Module - 2

# **Social Movements**

#### **Contents**

Unit - 5	Introduction
	Origin of Social Movements
Unit - 6	Nature of Social Movements
	Types of Social Movements
Unit - 7	Theories of Social Movements
Unit - 8	New Social Movements – NSM
	Conclusion
	Comprehension Questions
	References

# **Learning Objectives**

**Social Movements:** Origin, Nature, Types of Movements, Theories of Movement and new Social Movements

# Unit - 5

#### 2.1 Introduction

#### **Social Movement**

A social movement is an organized, collective, and long-term effort aimed at bringing about change in society or opposing a particular social issue. It is a form of social process that stands against prevailing injustice, inequality, or any other societal disorder. The purpose of social movements is to reform or completely transform the existing structures and systems in society to improve people's lifestyles, rights, and opportunities.

Social movements can be of various types, addressing social, political, economic, and cultural issues. For example, movements advocating for the rights of women, Dalits, indigenous communities, and other marginalized groups aim to ensure equal opportunities and rights for them in society. Additionally, environmental movements focus on issues like climate change and pollution, raising awareness about their seriousness and urging action.

There are several reasons behind the emergence of social movements. These movements arise as a response to inequalities, discrimination, and



injustice present in society. When a particular class or group feels that their rights are being violated or they are not receiving their natural entitlements, they turn to social movements to voice their concerns. Through these movements, people raise their voices and demand reforms from governments or other powerful institutions.

Social movements not only create awareness in society but also lead to changes in policymaking. They serve as a powerful tool for bringing about positive transformation in society. A social movement occurs when a section of society is dissatisfied and organizes itself to work towards a common goal.

# 2.2 Origin of Social Movements

#### 2.2.1 Meaning of the Origin of Social Movements

The origin of a social movement lies in the conditions, events, and factors that create a need for change or a sense of resistance within society. When a particular class or community experiences dissatisfaction, injustice, exploitation, or inequality, they unite and struggle for a common cause. This struggle is not limited to identifying issues but also involves mobilizing people into a movement and ultimately working towards change.

# 2.2.2 Causes of the Origin of Social Movements

There are several causes behind the emergence of social movements, which reflect dissatisfaction and the need for change within society:

# (i) Social Inequality and Injustice

Movements arise due to social inequality and discrimination based on caste, religion, gender, or class. When a group is deprived of its rights or subjected to discrimination, dissatisfaction grows and leads to movements.

# **Examples:**

- The Dalit Movement in India, led by Dr. B.R. Ambedkar.
- The Civil Rights Movement in the United States, led by Martin Luther King Jr.

# (ii) Economic Exploitation and Unemployment

Poverty, labor exploitation, low wages, and unemployment create deep dissatisfaction in society. When people face economic oppression or lack of - NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Social Movements job opportunities, they are forced to organize movements.

#### **Examples:**

- Trade Union Movements, fighting for labor rights.
- The French Revolution (1789), triggered by economic inequality.

### (iii) Political Oppression and Dictatorship

When governments suppress democracy or implement policies against public interests, people protest.

#### **Examples:**

- India's Freedom Struggle against British rule.
- The Arab Spring (2010-2012), a movement against dictatorial regimes.

## (iv) Cultural Conflicts and Identity Crisis

When a particular section of society feels that its cultural identity is under threat, it organizes movements to protect its heritage.

# **Examples:**

- Tamil Separatist Movement in Sri Lanka.
- Indigenous Movements in Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, and Madhya Pradesh, India.

# (v) Technological and Industrial Changes

New industrial and technological developments sometimes harm traditional workers or certain social groups, leading to resistance. These movements emerge when people feel that such changes threaten their livelihoods.

# **Examples:**

- The Luddite Movement (1811-1816, England), a protest against machines replacing workers.
- The Digital Rights Movement, advocating for internet freedom.

# (vi) Environmental Crisis

Excessive exploitation of natural resources or environmental degradation leads to public protests. When people feel that their environment is



under threat, they mobilize movements to protect it.

**Examples:** 

- The Chipko Movement (1973, Uttarakhand, India), against deforestation.
- The Narmada Bachao Andolan (1985), opposing displacement due to dam projects.

Social movements emerge as a response to various forms of oppression, injustice, and crises. They play a crucial role in shaping societies, advocating for rights, and bringing about social, economic, and political changes.

# 2.2.3. Process of Origin of Social Movements

The origin of social movements follows a systematic process that includes dissatisfaction, organization, mass mobilization, struggle, and eventual outcomes.

#### (i) Discontent in Society

This is the initial stage of a movement when a particular class or group feels that they are being subjected to injustice. People become aware of their rights and realize the need for change.

# (ii) Formation of Organization and Leadership

The dissatisfaction is then organized, and leadership emerges to guide the movement. Influential leaders such as Mahatma Gandhi, Dr. B.R. Ambedkar, and Anna Hazare have played significant roles in leading social movements.

# (iii) Mass Mobilization and Awareness

To strengthen the movement, public support is gathered through rallies, meetings, and social media campaigns. Raising awareness is crucial for the success of the movement.

# (iv) Struggle and Demands

The leaders and supporters of the movement demand change from the government or society. This struggle can take various forms, such as protests, satyagraha, strikes, and other means of resistance.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Social Movements

#### (v) Outcome of the Movement

The movement may succeed, as seen in India's freedom struggle, or it may fail. Some movements achieve partial success and bring gradual change in society.

#### 2.2.4. Origin of Major Historical Social Movements

### (i) Indian Freedom Struggle (1857-1947)

- Cause: Exploitation under British rule, economic and political oppression, and denial of fundamental rights to Indians.
- Outcome: India gained independence on August 15, 1947.

#### (ii) Dalit Movement (Post-1920s)

- Cause: Caste discrimination, untouchability, and lack of education and employment opportunities for Dalits.
- Outcome: Reservation policies in the Indian Constitution and strict laws against caste-based discrimination.

#### (iii) Narmada Bachao Andolan (1985)

- Cause: The displacement of thousands of families and environmental damage due to dam construction on the Narmada River.
- Outcome: Increased focus on rehabilitation policies and protection of social rights.

The origin of social movements is rooted in dissatisfaction, exploitation, injustice, and inequality within society. It follows a step-by-step process, from discontent to organization, struggle, and resolution. In the modern era, social media has accelerated the emergence and spread of movements, allowing them to gain momentum rapidly and reach a wider audience. Successful movements play a crucial role in bringing major changes that contribute to social development and justice

# Unit - 6

#### 2.3 Nature of Social Movements

# 3.3.1 Meaning of the Nature of Social Movements

The nature of social movements refers to the characteristics and attri-



butes that distinguish them from other social processes. A social movement is an organized, collective, and goal-oriented effort aimed at bringing about positive or negative changes in society.

Social movements can take various forms—some are peaceful (e.g., Mahatma Gandhi's Non-Cooperation Movement), while others are aggressive (e.g., the Naxalite Movement). These movements can have an impact at local, national, or international levels.

Social Action and Movements

#### 2.3.2 Key Characteristics of Social Movements

#### (i) Organized Effort

Social movements are not spontaneous; they are organized and planned efforts. They involve leadership, followers, and a guiding ideology.

**Example:** The Indian freedom struggle was organized under the leadership of Mahatma Gandhi, Subhash Chandra Bose, and Bhagat Singh.

### (ii) Collective Participation

Social movements are not individual efforts but depend on the participation of large sections of society.

**Example:** The Dalit Movement involved the collective participation of the Dalit community across India.

# (iii) Long-Term Process

Some movements achieve success quickly, but most take a long time to bring about social change.

**Example:** The women's empowerment movement is still ongoing.

# (iv) Defined Goals and Objectives

Every social movement has a clear purpose, whether it is for reform, change, resistance, or revolution.

**Example:** The goal of the Chipko Movement was forest conservation.

# (v) Resistance or Support

Social movements can be of two types:

• Change-Oriented Movements: Aim to establish a new system in



Social Movements society.

- **Example:** India's freedom movement.
- **Conservative Movements:** Struggle to preserve the existing social system.
- **Example:** Anti-reservation movement.

#### (vi) Conflict and Confrontation

Social movements often lead to confrontations with the government, administration, or other sections of society. These conflicts can be peaceful or violent.

#### **Examples:**

- Peaceful Movement: Mahatma Gandhi's Satyagraha.
- Violent Movement: Naxalite Movement.

### (vii) Ideologically Driven

Every social movement is influenced by a particular ideology, which provides direction and motivation.

## **Examples:**

- The Communist movement was based on Marxism.
- The Satyagraha movement was based on Gandhian philosophy.

# (viii) Use of Different Means

Social movements use various methods, such as:

- Peaceful Protests
- Strikes
- Public Meetings
- Social Media Campaigns

# 2.3.3 Factors Affecting the Nature of Social Movements

# (i) Socio-Cultural Factors

Traditions, customs, and beliefs influence the nature and direction of movements.



Social Action and Movements

- NOTES -

**Example:** The Dalit Movement emerged due to India's caste system.

#### (ii) Political Factors

Government policies, political oppression, and administrative structures shape the nature of movements.

**Example:** The movement for restoring democracy during the Emergency (1975-77) in India.

#### (iii) Economic Factors

Economic inequality, unemployment, and exploitation contribute to the rise of movements.

**Example:** Trade Union Movements to demand better wages and working conditions.

#### (iv) Technology and Communication Media

Modern technology, especially social media, has transformed the way movements operate.

#### **Example:**

- #MeToo Movement
- Farmers' Protest (2020-21) in India.

# 2.3.4 Types of Social Movements Based on Their Nature

# (i) Reform Movements

These movements seek to bring about social improvements.

# **Examples:**

- Raja Ram Mohan Roy's movement to abolish Sati.
- Women's empowerment movements.

# (ii) Revolutionary Movements

These aim to completely overthrow the existing system.

# **Examples:**

- French Revolution (1789).
- Indian Independence Struggle.



Social Movements

#### (iii) Reactionary Movements

These oppose ongoing changes and seek to maintain traditional values.

#### **Examples:**

- Khalistan Movement.
- Anti-reservation Movement.

#### (iv) New Social Movements

These focus on environmental, human rights, consumer rights, and global issues.

#### **Examples:**

- Chipko Movement (Environmental Conservation).
- LGBTQ+ Rights Movement.

The nature of social movements is complex and multidimensional. It depends on societal needs, dissatisfaction, and demands for change. Each movement has its own ideology, objectives, strategies, and impact. Modern communication tools have made movements more dynamic, allowing them to spread faster and gain wider participation

## 2.4 Types of Social Movements

# 2.4.1 Meaning of Social Movements

A social movement is an organized, collective, and purposeful effort aimed at bringing about change in society or preserving an existing system. Based on different social conditions and objectives, social movements can be classified into various categories.

# 2.4.2 Major Types of Social Movements

Social movements can be categorized based on different criteria, including:

# (A) Classification of Social Movements According to David Aberle

David Aberle categorized social movements based on their goals and the level of change they seek:

# (i) Alternative Movements

These movements aim to bring changes in individual behavior or lifestyle.



#### **Examples:**

- Swachh Bharat Abhiyan (Clean India Movement): Promoting personal and public hygiene.
- Anti-Drug Movement: Preventing drug addiction.

# Social Action and Movements

#### (ii) Reformative Movements

These movements seek to improve existing social structures without overthrowing them.

## **Examples:**

- Women's Rights Movement: Fighting for gender equality and women's rights.
- Dalit Movement: Advocating for the rights of the Dalit community.

## (iii) Revolutionary Movements

These movements aim to completely overthrow the existing social system.

#### **Examples:**

- Indian Independence Movement: To end British rule.
- French Revolution (1789).

# (iv) Reactionary Movements

These movements oppose societal changes and seek to preserve traditional systems.

# **Examples:**

- Anti-Reservation Movement.
- Khalistan Movement.

# (B) Types of Social Movements Based on Their Purpose

# (i) Political Movements

These movements aim to bring changes in the political system or governance



Social Movements

#### **Examples:**

- Quit India Movement (1942).
- Lokpal Movement (2011, led by Anna Hazare).

#### (ii) Social Reform Movements

These movements seek to eliminate social evils and improve society.

#### **Examples:**

- Abolition of Sati Movement (led by Raja Ram Mohan Roy).
- Anti-Child Marriage Movement.

#### (iii) Labor Movements

These movements focus on workers' rights and better working conditions.

#### **Examples:**

- Trade Union Movements.
- Bombay Textile Mill Strike (1982).

# (iv) Environmental Movements

These movements aim to protect natural resources and the environment.

# **Examples:**

- Chipko Movement (1973, Uttarakhand).
- Narmada Bachao Andolan (led by Medha Patkar, 1985).

# (v) Feminist Movements

These movements advocate for women's rights, equality, and justice.

# **Examples:**

- #MeToo Movement: Against sexual harassment.
- Self-Respect Movement (1925, led by Periyar).

# (C) Types of Social Movements Based on Organizational Structure

# (i) Institutionalized Movements

These are well-organized movements, often supported by governments or institutions.

# **Examples:**

• Human Rights Movements under the United Nations.



• Farmers' Movements led by agricultural organizations.

- NOTES -

# (ii) Non-Institutionalized Movements

These movements are spontaneous and do not have formal organizational structures.

#### **Examples:**

- Arab Spring (2011).
- Shaheen Bagh Protest (2019-20, India).

### (D) New Social Movements (NSM)

These movements differ from traditional movements and focus on environmental protection, human rights, women's rights, consumer protection, and global justice.

#### **Examples:**

- LGBTQ+ Rights Movement.
- Black Lives Matter (2013).

Social movements play a crucial role in bringing change, reform, or preserving societal structures. They vary based on their structure, purpose, impact, and strategies. In the modern era, technological advancements and social media have given social movements a new dimension, making them more dynamic and far-reaching. Each movement leaves a significant social, political, and economic impact on society.

# **Unit - 7**

## 2.5 Theories of Social Movements

Social movements are collective efforts aimed at bringing about change in society or preserving an existing system. Sociologists and thinkers have developed various theories to understand why and how social movements occur. These theories help us understand how people organize, how movements originate, and how they impact society.

# 2.5.1 Major Theories of Social Movements

# (A) Deprivation Theory

This theory states that when a particular group is economically, socially, or politically deprived, they initiate movements to demand their rights.

Social Action and Movements



Social Movements Key Thinker: Ted Robert Gurr

#### **Examples:**

- **Dalit Movement** Fighting against caste discrimination and inequality.
- Women Empowerment Movement Struggle for women's rights and equality.
- **Tribal Rights Movement** Fighting for traditional land and cultural rights.

### (B) Structural Strain Theory

This theory suggests that social movements arise when structural inequalities, economic crises, political oppression, or social changes create tensions in society.

**Key Thinker: Neil Smelser** 

Main Elements:

- **Structural Conduciveness:** When existing structures fail to meet people's needs.
- Structural Strain: Economic or political stress in society.
- **Collective Belief:** People believe that a movement can solve their problems.

# **Examples:**

- Farmers' Protest (2020-21) Resistance against agricultural laws.
- Arab Spring (2011) Uprising against dictatorial regimes.
- Labor Movements Demands for workers' rights and fair wages.

# (C) Resource Mobilization Theory

This theory states that the success of a movement depends on how well it mobilizes resources such as funds, media, public support, and organization.

Key Thinkers: John D. McCarthy and Mayer N. Zald

# **Examples:**

• **Mahatma Gandhi's Independence Struggle** – Effective use of mass support, organization, and resources.



• Black Lives Matter (2013) – Mobilization through social media and digital platforms.

Right to Education Movement – Organized efforts to reform government policies.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

#### (D) Political Process Theory

This theory suggests that political opportunities and policy changes influence movements. When political conditions are favorable, movements grow rapidly.

Key Thinker: Douglas McAdam

### **Examples:**

- Lokpal Movement (2011, Anna Hazare) Influenced government anti-corruption policies.
- American Civil Rights Movement (1950-60s) Struggle for racial equality.
- **Education Policy Protest Movements** Political pressure for policy reforms.

# (E) New Social Movement Theory (NSM)

This theory states that modern social movements are not limited to economic and political issues but also focus on culture, identity, environment, human rights, and gender equality.

Key Thinkers: Alain Touraine, Jürgen Habermas

# **Examples:**

- **LGBTQ+ Movement** Struggle for gender identity and rights.
- Environmental Movement (Climate Change Activism) Global movements against climate change.
- **Digital Rights Movement** Efforts to ensure internet freedom and privacy.

# (F) Collective Behavior Theory

This theory argues that when instability in society increases and institutional control weakens, people engage in collective protests.

Key Thinkers: Ralph Turner and Lewis Killian



Social Movements

#### **Examples:**

- Shaheen Bagh Protest (2019-20) Protest against the citizenship law
- Naxalite Movement Struggle against exploitation and injustice.
- Online Protests Global resistance through digital platforms.

#### (G) Relative Deprivation Theory

This theory states that when people feel deprived compared to others, they initiate movements.

Key Thinker: James Davies

### **Examples:**

- **Anti-Reservation Movement** Protest by general category people against reservation policies.
- **Dalit Movement** Struggle against social discrimination and inequality.
- **Minimum Wage Movement** Demand to reduce economic disparity.

Social movements arise due to various reasons, and different theories provide different perspectives to understand them. No single theory can fully explain all movements; rather, a comprehensive study of multiple theories is required.

In the modern era, technology and communication have further shaped the nature and theories of social movements. Social media and digital platforms have given movements a new dimension, making them more impactful and widespread. This highlights that social movements are not only based on traditional issues but also focus on new social, cultural, and technological concerns.

# Unit - 8

# 2.6 New Social Movements - NSM

#### 2.6.1 Introduction

New Social Movements (NSM) emerged in the late 20th century, differing from traditional social movements (such as labor movements and revolutionary movements). These movements primarily focus on culture, environment, human rights, gender equality, identity, globalization, and communication in the digital age.



#### **Key Thinkers:**

- Alain Touraine
- Jürgen Habermas
- Alberto Melucci

# Social Action and Movements

#### 3.6.2 Differences Between Traditional and New Social Movements

Feature	Traditional Social	New Social Movements
	Movements	
Objective	Economic and political	Identity, environment, hu-
	change	man rights
Organization	Centralized and disci-	Decentralized and net-
	plined	work-based
Strategy	Strikes, protests	Awareness campaigns,
		social media
<b>Major Examples</b>	Labor movements, in-	Climate change activism,
	dependence movements	LGBTQ+ movements

# 2.6.3 Major Theories of New Social Movements

# (A) Alain Touraine's Perspective

- In modern society, conflicts are not limited to economic issues but also involve culture and identity.
- New social movements challenge power structures and social norms.

# **Examples:**

- #MeToo Movement Against sexual harassment.
- Black Lives Matter (BLM) Against racial discrimination.

# (B) Jurgen Habermas' Perspective

- Habermas emphasized communication and public discourse.
- New social movements demand democratic dialogue and social justice.

# **Examples:**

- Lokpal Movement (2011) Anti-corruption mass movement.
- Shaheen Bagh Protest (2019-20) Protest against the citizenship law.



Social Movements

#### (C) Alberto Melucci's Perspective

- New social movements are linked to lifestyle, identity, and cultural values.
- These movements last for a long time and focus on changing people's mindsets.

## **Examples:**

- Greenpeace Environmental conservation movement.
- LGBTQ+ Movement For acceptance of gender and sexual identity.

### 2.6.4 Major Types of New Social Movements

### (A) Environmental Movements

• These movements address environmental issues and climate change.

### **Examples:**

- Chipko Movement (1973, India) Against deforestation.
- Fridays for Future Climate change activism led by Greta Thunberg.

# (B) Human Rights Movements

• These movements demand civil rights, social justice, and equality.

# **Examples:**

- Black Lives Matter (2013, USA) Against racial discrimination.
- Occupy Wall Street (2011) Against economic inequality.

# (C) Women & Gender Equality Movements

• These movements advocate for the rights of women and the LGBTQ+ community.

# **Examples:**

- #MeToo Movement Against sexual harassment of women.
- LGBTQ+ Pride Parades Supporting LGBTQ+ rights.



#### (D) Anti-Globalization Movements

• These movements oppose excessive capitalism, corporate control, and global inequality.

## **Examples:**

- Seattle Protests (1999) Against the World Trade Organization (WTO).
- Free Tibet Movement Supporting Tibet's independence.

### (E) Consumer Rights Movements

• These movements aim to protect consumers' rights and oppose unethical corporate policies.

#### **Examples:**

- Net Neutrality Movement For protecting internet users' rights.
- Vocal for Local Movement Promoting indigenous products.

# 2.6.5 Key Characteristics of New Social Movements

- **More focused on culture than the economy** These movements demand social and cultural change.
- Use of technology and social media Digital platforms play a major role.
- Challenging power structures Criticizing existing social and political systems.
- Global influence These movements can spread worldwide.
- Long-lasting impact They gradually change society's mindset.

New social movements differ from traditional ones and offer a fresh perspective on social change. They focus on issues like environment, human rights, gender equality, identity, and globalization. The digital age and social media have made these movements more powerful and far-reaching. Many new social movements in India and around the world continue to shape society significantly.

Social Action and Movements



Social Movements

#### 2.7 Conclusion

Social movements have played a significant role in shaping societies by challenging existing structures, advocating for rights, and driving social change. Their origins are rooted in historical, economic, and political contexts, and they vary in nature, from reformative to revolutionary movements. Theories of social movements, such as relative deprivation, resource mobilization, and political process theory, help in understanding their emergence, dynamics, and impact.

In the contemporary era, New Social Movements (NSMs) have shifted focus from class-based struggles to identity, environment, human rights, and globalization issues. Unlike traditional movements, NSMs emphasize decentralized leadership, cultural transformation, and non-violent resistance

Overall, social movements remain a crucial force in addressing inequalities, mobilizing communities, and fostering democracy. As societies evolve, so do movements, adapting to new challenges and technological advancements. Their effectiveness depends on leadership, organization, and public engagement, making them essential tools for collective action and social justice.

# 2.8 Comprehension Questions

# 1. Origin of Social Movements

- 1) What are the main factors that lead to the emergence of social movements?
- 2) How do social, political, and economic conditions influence the rise of social movements?
- 3) What role do leaders and organizations play in the origin of social movements?
- 4) How have historical events contributed to the formation of social movements?
- 5) What is the significance of grievances in the emergence of social movements?

#### 2. Nature of Social Movements

- 1) What are the key characteristics of a social movement?
- 2) How do social movements differ from other forms of collective action?



3) What distinguishes reformist movements from revolutionary movements?

4) How do emotions and collective identity shape the nature of social movements?

5) Why do some social movements sustain over time while others fade away?

Social Action and Movements

#### 3. Types of Social Movements

- 1) What are the different types of social movements? Provide examples.
- 2) How do reform movements differ from radical movements?
- 3) What are resistance movements, and how do they function?
- 4) How do religious and cultural movements contribute to social change?
- 5) What are the characteristics of labor movements and feminist movements?

#### 4. Theories of Social Movements

- 1) What is the Resource Mobilization Theory, and how does it explain social movements?
- 2) How does the Relative Deprivation Theory relate to social movements?
- 3) What is the Structural Strain Theory, and how does it contribute to understanding social movements?
- 4) How does the Political Process Theory explain the rise of social movements?
- 5) How do different theories of social movements complement or contradict each other?

#### 5. New Social Movements

- 1) What are New Social Movements (NSMs), and how do they differ from traditional social movements?
- 2) How do issues like environmentalism, human rights, and identity politics define New Social Movements?
- 3) What is the role of technology and social media in New Social Movements?
- 4) How do New Social Movements challenge traditional power struc-



Social Movements

tures?

5) Can New Social Movements be considered more inclusive and democratic than older movements?

#### 2.9 References

- 1) Alinsky, S. D. (1971). Rules for radicals: A pragmatic primer for realistic radicals. Random House.
- 2) Castells, M. (2012). Networks of outrage and hope: Social movements in the internet age. Polity Press.
- 3) Della Porta, D., & Diani, M. (2006). Social movements: An introduction (2nd ed.). Blackwell Publishing.
- 4) Eyerman, R., & Jamison, A. (1991). Social movements: A cognitive approach. Pennsylvania State University Press.
- **5) Habermas, J. (1981).** New social movements. Telos, 49, 33-37.
- 6) McAdam, D., McCarthy, J. D., &Zald, M. N. (1996). Comparative perspectives on social movements: Political opportunities, mobilizing structures, and cultural framings. Cambridge University Press.
- 7) Piven, F. F., & Cloward, R. A. (1979). Poor people's movements: Why they succeed, how they fail. Vintage.
- 8) Scott, A. (1990). Ideology and the new social movements. Routledge.
- 9) Tilly, C. (2004). Social movements, 1768–2004. Paradigm Publishers.
- **10) Touraine, A. (1981).** The voice and the eye: An analysis of social movements. Cambridge University Press.



# Module - 3

# Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

# Social Action and Movements

#### **Contents**

Unit - 9	Introduction
	Movement Analysis
<b>Unit - 10</b>	Ideology
	Structure
	Leadership
<b>Unit - 11</b>	Process and Outcomes
	Analysis of ideology and approach of Gandhi
	Analysis of ideology & approach of Martin Luther King Jr.
<b>Unit - 12</b>	Analysis of ideology and approach of Frantz Fanon
	Conclusion
	Comprehension Questions
	References

#### **Learning Objectives**

**Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change:** Movement Analysis: Ideology, Structure, Leadership, Process and Outcomes, Analysis of ideology and approach of (Gandhi, Martin Luther King Jr. and Frantz Fanon)

# Unit - 9

#### 3.1 Introduction

Social movements, social action, and social change are crucial elements that drive transformation within society. These three aspects are interconnected and work towards establishing justice, equality, rights, and identity within a community.

#### **Social Movements**

• Social movements are collective efforts by a group of people aimed at bringing about change in society. These movements emerge in response to social, political, or economic issues that affect a community or a nation. They play a crucial role in advocating for justice, equality, and rights, often challenging existing norms and policies.



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

- Social movements can be classified into various types, such as reform movements, revolutionary movements, and resistance movements, each with a unique objective and approach. They rely on organized action, public awareness, and mass mobilization to achieve their goals. Throughout history, social movements have been instrumental in shaping societies, influencing government policies, and addressing critical issues such as civil rights, gender equality, environmental protection, and labor rights.
- In an evolving world, social movements continue to be powerful tools for social change, empowering individuals and communities to work towards a more just and equitable society.

#### Social Action -

- Social action refers to organized and purposeful activities aimed at bringing about positive change in society. It involves collective efforts by individuals, groups, or organizations to address social issues, promote justice, and improve the overall well-being of communities. Social action is often driven by ethical, humanitarian, and democratic principles, focusing on empowering marginalized groups and advocating for policy changes.
- Social action can take various forms, including protests, advocacy campaigns, community development programs, and policy interventions. It plays a vital role in addressing social inequalities, promoting human rights, and ensuring access to essential resources such as education, healthcare, and employment. Throughout history, social action has been a driving force behind major social reforms, including civil rights movements, labor rights activism, and environmental conservation efforts.
- By mobilizing communities and raising awareness, social action serves as a catalyst for social transformation, inspiring people to work collectively towards a more just, inclusive, and equitable society.

# Social Change -

• Social change refers to the long-term transformation in a society's structure, values, beliefs, and behavior. It is a continuous process that influences social institutions, cultural norms, and economic and political systems. Social change can occur gradually over time or take place rapidly due to revolutionary movements, technological advancements, or major historical events.



Various factors contribute to social change, including scientific and technological progress, economic shifts, political reforms, demograph-

ic changes, and cultural influences. For example, the Industrial Revolution brought about a shift from agrarian societies to industrial economies, while globalization has led to increased cultural exchange and

economic interdependence among nations.

Social change is essential for societal progress, as it helps address social inequalities, promotes human rights, and fosters innovation. However, it can also bring challenges such as resistance to new ideas, cultural conflicts, and economic disruptions. Understanding social change allows individuals and policymakers to adapt and create strategies that ensure positive and sustainable development for future generations.

# 3.2 Movement Analysis

Social movements, social action, and social change are interconnected processes that drive transformation in society. Social movements emerge as collective efforts to address specific social, political, or economic issues. Social action involves organized activities aimed at bringing about positive change, while social change refers to long-term transformations in societal structures, values, and behaviours. Movement analysis helps in understanding how these processes influence and shape societal development.

# **Understanding Movement Analysis**

Movement analysis examines the causes, strategies, impact, and outcomes of social movements. It involves studying the following key aspects:

- Origins and Causes Why do movements emerge? They can be triggered by social injustices, economic disparities, political oppression, or cultural shifts.
- **Types of Social Movements** Reform movements (e.g., Civil Rights Movement), revolutionary movements (e.g., French Revolution), resistance movements (e.g., Anti-Globalization Movements), and alternative movements (e.g., Environmental Movements).
- 3. Leadership and Organization The role of leaders, activists, and grassroots organizations in mobilizing support and sustaining the movement.
- Strategies and Tactics The methods used, such as protests, advocacy, lobbying, civil disobedience, or digital activism.

- NOTES -

Social Action and

Movements



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change **5. Impact and Consequences** – The short-term and long-term effects on policies, laws, and social structures.

Interconnection Between Social Movements, Social Action, and Social Change

- Social movements create awareness and mobilize people toward a cause.
- Social action translates that awareness into organized efforts for change.
- Social change is the result of sustained movements and actions that reshape societal norms and institutions.

Movement analysis provides a framework for understanding the dynamics of social transformation. By examining historical and contemporary movements, we can assess their effectiveness, challenges, and contributions to shaping a more just and equitable society.

## **Unit - 10**

## 3.3 Ideology in Social Movements

Ideology plays a crucial role in shaping social movements, social action, and social change. It provides a set of beliefs, values, and principles that guide individuals and groups in their pursuit of societal transformation. Ideology influences the goals, strategies, and direction of a movement, determining its approach to social, political, and economic issues.

## Role of Ideology in Social Movements

- 1. **Defining the Movement's Purpose** Ideology helps in articulating the movement's objectives, whether they are aimed at reform, revolution, or resistance.
- **2. Mobilizing Support** A strong ideological foundation attracts supporters and unites them under a common cause.
- **3. Shaping Strategies and Tactics** The ideological stance of a movement determines whether it adopts peaceful protests, legal advocacy, civil disobedience, or radical actions.
- **4. Influencing Policy and Institutional Change** Many movements aim to translate their ideological goals into legislative or policy changes.
  - Types of Ideologies in Social Movements
- 1. Liberalism Advocates for individual rights, democracy, and social



justice (e.g., Civil Rights Movement).

**2. Marxism and Socialism** – Focuses on class struggle, economic equality, and workers' rights (e.g., Labor Movements).

- **3. Feminism** Aims for gender equality and women's rights (e.g., Suffrage Movement, #MeToo Movement).
- **4. Environmentalism** Seeks ecological sustainability and protection of natural resources (e.g., Climate Change Movements).
- **5. Religious and Cultural Ideologies** Influence movements related to moral, spiritual, or cultural issues (e.g., Anti-Colonial Movements, Revivalist Movements).

Interconnection Between Ideology, Social Action, and Social Change

- Social movements are driven by ideological beliefs that challenge the status quo.
- Social action is the practical application of ideological goals through activism and advocacy.
- Social change occurs when ideological movements achieve transformation in societal structures, laws, and cultural norms.

Ideology serves as the backbone of social movements, guiding their vision, motivating supporters, and shaping strategies. A well-defined ideology enhances the effectiveness of social action and ensures that movements contribute to meaningful and lasting social change.

## 3.4 The Structure of Social Movements

The structure of a social movement determines how it is organized, functions, and mobilizes resources to achieve its objectives. A well-defined structure enhances the movement's efficiency, sustainability, and ability to bring about social change. Social movements can have formal or informal structures depending on their goals, leadership, and operational strategies.

## **Key Components of Social Movement Structure**

## 1. Leadership and Decision-Making

- Leadership can be centralized (hierarchical) or decentralized (collective).
- Leaders provide direction, strategy, and coordination for movement activities.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change • Decision-making may be democratic, consensus-based, or authoritative.

## 2. Membership and Participation

- Movements consist of core activists, supporters, and sympathizers.
- Participation can be active (direct involvement in protests, advocacy) or passive (supporting through funding, spreading awareness).
- Recruitment strategies depend on ideology, communication methods, and social networks.

### 3. Organizational Structure

- Formal Organizations Structured groups with legal recognition, leadership roles, and systematic operations (e.g., NGOs, unions).
- Informal Networks Loosely connected individuals or groups that coordinate actions without rigid hierarchy (e.g., grassroots activism, online movements).

## 4. Tactics and Strategies

- Movements adopt various strategies like protests, lobbying, legal advocacy, civil disobedience, and media campaigns.
- Strategies depend on resources, public support, and opposition from authorities.

### 5. Communication and Media

- Effective communication is essential for mobilization, awareness, and advocacy.
- Traditional methods: Print media, speeches, rallies.
- Modern methods: Social media, digital campaigns, live-streaming protests.

### 6. Resource Mobilization

- Financial support from donations, crowdfunding, grants, or membership fees.
- Human resources including volunteers, professionals, and activists.



Material resources such as banners, office space, and legal assistance.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

### 7. Alliances and Networks

- Movements often form coalitions with other groups, political parties, or international organizations.
- Networks help in sharing resources, knowledge, and amplifying impact.

### **Types of Social Movement Structures**

- **1. Centralized Structure** Strong leadership with a clear hierarchy (e.g., Labor Unions).
- **2. Decentralized Structure** Autonomous groups working towards a common goal (e.g., Environmental Movements).
- **3. Network-Based Structure** Digital and grassroots-based collaboration without a fixed hierarchy (e.g., #MeToo Movement).

Interconnection Between Structure, Social Action, and Social Change

- A well-structured movement is more effective in mobilizing social action.
- A strong leadership and network ensure long-term sustainability and impact.
- The right structure enhances adaptability in response to political and social challenges, increasing the likelihood of achieving meaningful social change.

The structure of a social movement plays a vital role in its success. A clear organizational framework, strong leadership, effective communication, and resource mobilization enable movements to sustain their efforts and create long-term social change.

## 3.5 Leadership in Social Movements

Leadership plays a crucial role in the success and sustainability of social movements. Leaders provide vision, direction, and strategic planning to mobilize individuals, coordinate activities, and influence policy changes. The effectiveness of a movement often depends on the leadership style, structure, and the ability to adapt to challenges.



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

### **Types of Leadership in Social Movements**

## 1. Charismatic Leadership

- Based on the personal appeal, vision, and persuasive abilities of an individual.
- Leaders inspire followers through emotional connection and personal influence
- Example: Mahatma Gandhi in the Indian Independence Movement, Martin Luther King Jr. in the Civil Rights Movement.

## 2. Collective Leadership

- Decision-making is shared among a group rather than a single individual.
- Encourages participatory leadership where all members contribute equally.
- Example: Feminist movements, environmental activism groups.

## 3. Bureaucratic Leadership

- Hierarchical leadership with formal roles and responsibilities.
- Organizations follow rules, regulations, and structured decision-making processes.
- Example: Labor unions, political movements.

## 4. Situational Leadership

- Leadership adapts based on the movement's needs and external challenges.
- Leaders may emerge at different phases of the movement.
- Example: Climate change activism, where different leaders emerge in response to political and environmental crises.

## **Roles and Responsibilities of Leaders in Social Movements**

## 1. Vision and Strategy Development

• Define the movement's goals, ideology, and long-term vision.



• Formulate strategies for advocacy, mobilization, and policy influence.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

### 2. Mobilization and Coordination

- Encourage participation and recruit supporters.
- Organize protests, campaigns, and awareness programs.

### 3. Resource Management

- Secure financial and human resources.
- Ensure proper utilization of funds, media outreach, and logistical support.

### 4. Conflict Resolution and Negotiation

- Address internal disagreements and maintain unity within the movement.
- Engage with governments, policymakers, and other stakeholders for negotiations.

## 5. Adaptability and Crisis Management

- Respond to challenges such as political repression, legal issues, or changing public opinion.
- Adjust strategies and tactics based on evolving circumstances.

## **Challenges Faced by Leadership in Social Movements**

- **Resistance from Authorities** Government oppression, censorship, and legal restrictions.
  - Internal Conflicts Disagreements on goals, strategies, and resource allocation.
  - Sustaining Momentum Keeping participants motivated and engaged over time.
  - Media and Public Perception Managing narratives and countering misinformation.

Leadership's Impact on Social Action and Social Change

• Strong leadership leads to effective social action, ensuring mass



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

- participation and media attention.
- Adaptive leadership ensures sustainability, even in the face of obstacles.
- Leadership determines the movement's legacy, influencing longterm policy changes and societal shifts.

Leadership in social movements is essential for inspiring change, organizing collective action, and achieving social transformation. Different leadership styles influence the structure, strategies, and success of movements. Effective leadership not only mobilizes people but also ensures that the movement's objectives translate into meaningful and lasting social change.

### **Unit - 11**

## 3.6 Process and Outcomes of Social Movements

### 1. Process of Social Movements

The development of social movements follows a structured process that evolves over time. This process includes various stages, from the emergence of discontent to the achievement of intended social change. Below are the key stages in the process of social movements:

## 1) Emergence (Initial Stage)

- The movement begins as a response to social, political, or economic grievances.
- Awareness of an issue spreads among affected individuals and groups.
- Early discussions, protests, and networking among like-minded individuals occur.

## 2) Coalescence (Organization and Mobilization)

- The movement starts gaining momentum through collective organization.
- Leaders emerge, and goals become clearer.
- Strategies such as protests, petitions, advocacy campaigns, and social media outreach are employed.



3) Bureaucratization (Institutionalization)

• The movement becomes more structured, with formal leadership and clear objectives.

- NGOs, advocacy groups, and legal entities may be formed to sustain the movement.
- Official negotiations with policymakers, legal battles, and lobbying efforts take place.

### 4) Decline or Transformation

- The movement may achieve its goals and dissolve, or it may evolve into a new phase.
- In some cases, movements fade due to suppression, loss of public interest, or internal conflicts.
- Some movements transition into long-term organizations or inspire future movements.

### 2. Outcomes of Social Movements

The impact of social movements varies depending on their goals, strategies, and the socio-political context. The outcomes can be broadly categorized into:

## 1) Policy and Legislative Changes

- Successful movements often result in the formulation or amendment of laws
- Example: Civil Rights Movement in the U.S. led to the Civil Rights Act of 1964.
- Example: Anti-corruption movements influencing stricter governance policies.

## 2) Social and Cultural Transformation

- Changes in societal attitudes, norms, and values.
- Example: Women's rights movements promoting gender equality and workplace inclusion.
- Example: Environmental movements raising awareness and promoting sustainable practices.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

### 3) Structural and Institutional Reforms

- Creation of new institutions or restructuring of existing ones to address social issues.
- Example: Labor movements leading to the establishment of workers' unions and better labor laws.

### 4) Empowerment and Awareness

- Increased political and social awareness among marginalized groups.
- Example: LGBTQ+ rights movements increasing representation and legal protection.

## 5) Suppression and Backlash

- In some cases, movements face government repression, opposition from conservative forces, or counter-movements.
- Example: Crackdowns on pro-democracy movements in authoritarian regimes.

## 6) Evolution into New Movements

- Some movements give rise to new movements addressing related issues.
- Example: The anti-colonial struggle influencing later civil rights and indigenous rights movements.

The process of social movements is dynamic, evolving from initial awareness to structured activism, often leading to social, political, and cultural transformations. While some movements achieve their objectives and create lasting change, others may face challenges or opposition. Understanding the process and outcomes of movements helps in analyzing their effectiveness and long-term impact on society.

## 3.7Analysis of Ideology and Approach of Gandhi

## Gandhi's Ideology in Social Movements

Mahatma Gandhi's ideology was rooted in non-violence, truth, self-reliance, and moral integrity. His approach to social movements combined



ethical principles with pragmatic action, influencing political and social reforms not only in India but globally. The core aspects of his ideology include:

1. Satyagraha (Truth and Non-Violent Resistance)

- Central to Gandhi's philosophy was Satyagraha, meaning "insistence on truth."
- It emphasized non-violent civil resistance against injustice and oppression.
- Example: The Salt March (Dandi March) in 1930, where Gandhi led a mass protest against British salt laws.

## 2. Ahimsa (Non-Violence)

- Non-violence was both a moral and strategic principle in Gandhi's movements.
- He believed in achieving justice through peaceful means rather than aggression.
- This inspired later leaders like Martin Luther King Jr. and Nelson Mandela.

### 3. Sarvodaya (Welfare of All)

- Gandhi's vision was not just about political freedom but also social upliftment and community welfare.
- He promoted economic self-sufficiency and Gram Swaraj (village self-rule).
- Example: Constructive programs like the promotion of Khadi (hand-spun cloth) to encourage self-reliance.

### 4. Self-Reliance and Economic Decentralization

- He opposed industrial capitalism and favoredlocalized, self-sufficient economies.
- Promoted Swadeshi (use of indigenous products) as a means of economic independence.

## 5. Religious Harmony and Social Equality

- Gandhi stood against untouchability and caste discrimination, advocating for social inclusion.
- He worked for Hindu-Muslim unity and opposed religious divisions.
- Example: Harijan Movement, which aimed to uplift Dalits and abolish untouchability.

- NOTES -

Social Action and

Movements



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

## Gandhi's Approach in Social Movements

Gandhi's approach was unique as it combined moral conviction, mass mobilization, and strategic non-violent resistance. His method can be analyzed through key movements and tactics:

### 1. Non-Cooperation Movement (1920-1922)

- Encouraged Indians to boycott British goods, institutions, and services.
- Emphasized self-rule through peaceful resistance.
- Halted after the Chauri Chaura incident (violence by protestors) as Gandhi remained committed to non-violence.

## 2. Civil Disobedience Movement (1930-1934)

- Deliberate defiance of unjust British laws, starting with the Salt March.
- Encouraged people to break colonial laws peacefully.
- Gained mass support, forcing the British to negotiate with Gandhi (Gandhi-Irwin Pact, 1931).

### 3. Quit India Movement (1942)

- Called for immediate independence from British rule during World War II.
- Led to mass protests, strikes, and arrests, making British rule unsustainable.

### 4. Constructive Work and Grassroots Mobilization

- Unlike traditional political leaders, Gandhi worked at the grassroots level, promoting education, sanitation, and rural development.
- Encouraged women's participation in social movements, making them active agents of change.

## Impact of Gandhi's Ideology and Approach

- Independence of India His movements significantly contributed to the end of British rule in 1947.
- Global Influence Inspired non-violent resistance movements across the world, including the U.S. Civil Rights Movement.
- Social Reforms His campaigns led to reforms in caste discrimination, religious unity, and rural development
- Decentralized Economic Vision Although India adopted a mixed



economy post-independence, his ideas of village self-sufficiency still - NOTES -

influence policies.

Gandhi's ideology and approach to social movements were deeply rooted in non-violence, self-reliance, and social justice. His movements were not just political struggles but moral and social revolutions, aiming to create a just and equal society. His methods continue to inspire activists and movements worldwide in their fight for justice, democracy, and human rights.

Social Action and Movements

# 3.8 Analysis of Ideology and Approach of Martin Luther King Jr.

### 1. Martin Luther King Jr.'s Ideology in Social Movements

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. was a key leader of the American Civil Rights Movement, advocating for racial equality, justice, and social change through non-violent resistance. His ideology was deeply influenced by Christian theology, democratic principles, and Mahatma Gandhi's philosophy of non-violence.

## 1) Non-Violence (Ahimsa) and Civil Disobedience

- Inspired by Gandhi's Satyagraha, King emphasized peaceful protest against racial segregation and discrimination.
- He believed that moral force is stronger than physical force in achieving justice.
- Example: Montgomery Bus Boycott (1955-56), where African Americans boycotted segregated buses.

## 2) Justice and Equality for All

- King fought for racial equality, voting rights, and an end to segregation in the U.S.
- His famous "I Have a Dream" speech (1963) called for a future where people are judged by their character, not race.
- Advocated for economic and social justice, believing poverty was a barrier to true freedom.



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

### 3) Faith and Moral Leadership

- As a Baptist minister, his activism was rooted in Christian love (Agape) and moral righteousness.
- He saw justice as a spiritual duty, urging people to act according to higher moral laws beyond unjust man-made laws.

## 4) Democratic and Constitutional Principles

- King emphasized the U.S. Constitution's promises of freedom and equality, arguing that racial segregation violated democratic values.
- He used legal frameworks to push for civil rights laws, leading to land-mark legislation.

## 5) The Beloved Community

- King envisioned a society where all people, regardless of race or class, lived in harmony and justice.
- His goal was not just legal equality but social integration and reconciliation.

## 2. Martin Luther King Jr.'s Approach in Social Movements

Dr. King's approach combined grassroots activism, mass mobilization, and strategic non-violent resistance. Key elements include:

## 1) Civil Disobedience and Peaceful Protests

- Encouraged breaking unjust segregation laws peacefully while accepting legal consequences.
- Example: Birmingham Campaign (1963) Non-violent protests against racial segregation, leading to brutal police crackdowns.

## 2) Mass Mobilization and Public Awareness

- Organized marches, boycotts, and rallies to raise national and global awareness of racial injustices.
- Example: March on Washington (1963) Over 250,000 people gathered for civil rights and economic justice.



### 3) Negotiation and Legislative Change

• Used dialogue with political leaders and court cases to push for legal reforms.

Social Action and Movements

## **Key victories:**

- Civil Rights Act (1964) Ended segregation in public places.
- Voting Rights Act (1965) Secured voting rights for African Americans.

### 4) Grassroots Organizing and Coalition Building

- Worked with churches, student activists (SNCC), and labor unions to unite different groups in the fight for justice.
- Encouraged interracial cooperation, believing justice for Black Americans was linked to broader social progress.

### 5) Direct Confrontation of Injustice

- King believed that exposing oppression to the public eye would force moral reflection and policy change.
- Example: Selma to Montgomery March (1965) Led to national outrage and the Voting Rights Act.

## Impact of Martin Luther King Jr.'s Ideology and Approach

- End of Legal Segregation His activism led to landmark civil rights laws, ending racial segregation in the U.S.
- Global Influence Inspired movements for non-violent resistance worldwide, from South Africa's anti-apartheid struggle to Dalit rights in India.
- Economic and Social Justice His later years focused on economic inequality, advocating for fair wages and better living conditions for the poor.
- Legacy of Non-Violent Protest His model continues to shape modern social movements, including Black Lives Matter and climate justice activism.

Martin Luther King Jr.'s non-violent ideology and strategic activism transformed American society, making racial equality a legal and moral



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change imperative. His commitment to justice, peace, and social unity remains a guiding force for civil rights movements globally. His vision of the Beloved Community, where justice and love prevail, continues to inspire generations in the fight for human dignity and equality.

### **Unit - 12**

## 3.9 Analysis of Ideology and Approach of Frantz Fanon

### 1. Frantz Fanon's Ideology in Social Movements

Frantz Fanon (1925–1961) was a revolutionary thinker, psychiatrist, and anti-colonial activist whose work deeply influenced decolonization movements and liberation struggles worldwide. His ideology was rooted in anti-colonial resistance, psychological liberation, and revolutionary violence as a means of dismantling oppressive structures.

### 1) Anti-Colonialism and Decolonization

- Fanon believed colonialism was a dehumanizing system that not only exploited people economically but also oppressed them psychologically.
- His famous book, "The Wretched of the Earth" (1961), argued that true freedom could only be achieved through decolonization, not mere reforms.

## 2) Revolutionary Violence as a Necessary Tool

- Fanon viewed violence as a legitimate means for the colonized to reclaim their dignity and overthrow colonial rule.
- Unlike Gandhi's and King's non-violence, he argued that violence was a response to the violence of colonialism and a way to restore self-respect among the oppressed.

## 3) Psychological Liberation and Identity Formation

- As a psychiatrist, Fanon analyzed the psychological effects of colonization, where the colonized internalized inferiority and self-hatred.
- He believed mental liberation was essential before achieving political freedom.
- His book "Black Skin, White Masks" (1952) explored how racism



shapes identity and self-perception.

Social Action and

Movements

### 4) Rejection of Assimilation

- Fanon criticized assimilation into the colonial culture, arguing that the colonized must create their own identity and reject European dominance.
- He opposed the idea that the colonized could gain equality by adopting the culture of the oppressor.

### 5) Nationalism and Socialism

- He supported revolutionary nationalism but warned against post-colonial elites who might replace colonial rulers without changing the system.
- Advocated for socialism and collective economic structures to ensure true liberation.

## 2. Frantz Fanon's Approach in Social Movements

Fanon's approach to social movements was shaped by his direct involvement in Algeria's struggle for independence from French colonial rule. He combined theory with activism, working as a spokesperson for the National Liberation Front (FLN) of Algeria.

## 1) Armed Struggle and Revolutionary Warfare

- Fanon believed that colonialism could only be dismantled through armed resistance.
- He supported guerrilla warfare, sabotage, and direct confrontation against colonial forces.
- Example: Algerian War of Independence (1954–1962) He actively supported the FLN's armed struggle against France.

## 2) Mobilization of the Peasantry and the Working Class

- He argued that rural peasants and workers were the true revolutionaries, not the educated elites.
- Unlike Marxists who emphasized the urban proletariat, Fanon saw the peasantry as the main force of anti-colonial struggles.



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

### 3) Creation of a New National Consciousness

- Encouraged decolonized societies to rebuild their identity, culture, and governance systems without relying on Western models.
- Warned that newly independent nations should avoid becoming neocolonial states, where elites mimic colonial rulers.

### 4) International Solidarity with Other Anti-Colonial Movements

- Fanon's work influenced revolutionary movements in Africa, Latin America, and the Caribbean, including the Black Power movement in the U.S.
- He saw global imperialism as a common enemy and called for unity among oppressed peoples worldwide.

### 5) Political and Economic Decolonization

- He argued that true freedom required not just political independence but also economic and social transformation.
- Rejected capitalism as a post-colonial model, advocating for socialist policies to uplift the masses.

## Impact of Frantz Fanon's Ideology and Approach

- Inspiration for Global Liberation Movements His writings influenced African liberation struggles (Angola, Mozambique, South Africa), Latin American revolutionaries (Che Guevara), and Black liberation movements in the U.S.
- **Psychological Empowerment** Helped shape post-colonial theory by highlighting the mental impact of colonization and the need for self-determination.
- Legacy in Radical Political Thought His ideas continue to inspire anti-imperialist, socialist, and anti-racist movements worldwide.
- Critique of Post-Colonial Governments Warned against corrupt elites who replace colonial rulers but maintain exploitation.

Frantz Fanon's ideology was radical, anti-colonial, and revolutionary, advocating for armed struggle, psychological liberation, and socialist transformation. His belief that violence was necessary for decolonization made him a controversial figure, yet his impact on global resistance movements remains profound. His work continues to shape debates on race, power,



and liberation, offering a powerful critique of colonialism, capitalism, and oppression.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

## 3.10 Conclusion

Social movements, social action, and social change are interconnected processes that shape societies by challenging existing structures and advocating for justice, equality, and rights. The ideology, structure, leadership, process, and outcomes of movements determine their effectiveness and long-term impact.

The ideological foundations of movements guide their strategies and goals. Leaders like Mahatma Gandhi, Martin Luther King Jr., and Frantz Fanon exemplify different approaches to social action. Gandhi's nonviolent resistance (Satyagraha) emphasized moral and ethical transformation, King's civil rights movement was rooted in Christian nonviolence and democratic principles, while Fanon's revolutionary anti-colonial struggle advocated for radical and psychological liberation.

The success of social movements depends on organizational structure, leadership, mobilization strategies, and the sociopolitical context in which they operate. Some movements achieve immediate policy changes, while others lead to gradual cultural and systemic shifts. Regardless of the method, these movements highlight the power of collective action in driving social change.

In the modern era, new social movements continue to evolve, incorporating digital activism, intersectional struggles, and transnational solidarity. Understanding past movements provides valuable insights for future social actions aimed at building a more just, equitable, and inclusive society.

## 3.11 Comprehension Questions

1. Movement Analysis: Ideology, Structure, Leadership, Process, and Outcomes

## Ideology

- 1) What role does ideology play in shaping social movements?
- 2) How do different ideologies influence the goals and strategies of social movements?
- 3) Can a social movement exist without a strong ideological foundation?



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change Why or why not?

- 4) How does ideology impact the mobilization of people in a movement?
- 5) What are some examples of ideologically driven social movements?

### 1.1 Structure

- 1) What are the different structural models of social movements?
- 2) How does the structure of a social movement impact its effectiveness?
- 3) What is the difference between centralized and decentralized movement structures?
- 4) How does the presence or absence of formal leadership affect movement organization?
- 5) How do grassroots movements differ in structure from large-scale, institutionalized movements?

### 1.2 Leadership

- 1) What is the role of leadership in social movements?
- 2) How do different leadership styles influence the success of a movement?
- 3) What are the qualities of an effective social movement leader?
- 4) How do leaders balance personal influence with collective decision-making in movements?
- 5) What challenges do leaders of social movements often face?

### 1.3 Process

- 1) What are the key stages in the development of a social movement?
- 2) How does a movement transition from emergence to mass mobilization?
- 3) What strategies are commonly used in social action to bring about change?
- 4) How do social movements sustain themselves over time?
- 5) What factors can lead to the decline or failure of a social movement?



### 1.4 Outcomes

- 1) How do we measure the success of a social movement?
- 2) Can a movement be considered successful even if it does not achieve all its goals? Why or why not?
- 3) What are some examples of social movements that have led to significant policy or social changes?
- 4) How do social movements contribute to long-term societal transformation?
- 5) What are some unintended consequences of social movements?

## 2. Analysis of Ideology and Approach of Gandhi, Martin Luther King Jr., and Frantz Fanon

### 2.1 Mahatma Gandhi

- 1) What was the core ideology behind Gandhi's approach to social change?
- 2) How did Gandhi's concept of Satyagraha influence social movements?
- 3) What role did nonviolence play in Gandhi's method of social action?
- 4) How did Gandhi integrate spiritual and political elements in his activism?
- What were the key outcomes of Gandhi's social action strategies?

## 2.2 Martin Luther King Jr.

- 1) How did Martin Luther King Jr. incorporate Gandhi's philosophy into his activism?
- 2) What was the role of civil disobedience in King's movement?
- 3) How did King's leadership influence the Civil Rights Movement?
- 4) What were the major ideological differences between King and other civil rights activists like Malcolm X?
- 5) How did King's movement contribute to legislative changes in the U.S.?

### 2.3 Frantz Fanon

1) What was the central argument of Fanon's work "The Wretched of the Earth"?

# - NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Social Movements, Social Action and Social Change

- 2) How did Fanon's ideology differ from that of Gandhi and King?
- 3) Why did Fanon advocate for violent resistance in decolonization struggles?
- 4) How did Fanon view the psychological effects of colonialism on oppressed communities?
- 5) What impact did Fanon's ideas have on revolutionary movements worldwide?

## 3.12 References

- 1) Alinsky, S. D. (1971). Rules for radicals: A pragmatic primer for realistic radicals. Vintage.
- **2) Fanon, F. (1963).** The wretched of the earth (R. Philcox, Trans.). Grove Press.
- **3) Gandhi, M. K. (1997).** The essential Gandhi: An anthology of his writings on his life, work, and ideas (L. Fischer, Ed.). Vintage.
- 4) King, M. L. Jr. (1963). Why we can't wait. Harper & Row.
- 5) McAdam, D., Tarrow, S., & Tilly, C. (2001). Dynamics of contention. Cambridge University Press.
- 6) Piven, F. F., & Cloward, R. A. (1979). Poor people's movements: Why they succeed, how they fail. Vintage.
- 7) Tilly, C. (2004). Social movements, 1768–2004. Paradigm Publishers.
- 8) Touraine, A. (1981). The voice and the eye: An analysis of social movements. Cambridge University Press.



## Module - 4

## **Sociological Concepts**

### **Contents**

<b>Unit - 13</b>	Introduction
	Sociological Concepts
<b>Unit - 14</b>	Social Structure
	Social Institutions and Social Groups
<b>Unit - 15</b>	Socialization
	Social Control
<b>Unit - 16</b>	Social Change
	Conclusion
	Comprehension Questions
	References

## **Learning Objectives**

Sociological Concepts: Social Structure, Social Institutions and Social Groups, Socialization, Social Control and Social Change.

## **Unit - 13**

### 4.1 Introduction

Sociology is a scientific study that analyzes society, its structure, processes, and changes. Sociological concepts refer to the fundamental theories and frameworks through which we understand various dynamics and systems of society. In this book, we will explore key concepts such as social structure, social institutions, social groups, socialization, social control, and social change.

## 4.2 Sociological Concepts

Sociological concepts are the fundamental ideas and theories through which sociologists attempt to understand the structure, functioning, change, and relationships among different social groups within society. These concepts form the foundation of sociological studies and help in understanding society from a scientific perspective.

# - NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Sociological Concepts

### **Major Sociological Concepts**

1) Society – Society is a group of people who live together, form relationships, and share a common culture and beliefs. It is an organized system where individuals interact with each other and follow shared traditions, values, and norms.

Sociologists consider society as a dynamic system where continuous changes occur. Society is primarily classified into traditional and modern forms.

- o Traditional societies are mostly agrarian, community-based, and centered on collective living.
- o Modern societies are influenced by industrialization, urbanization, and technological advancements.

The main purpose of society is to provide security, cooperation, and identity to its members. It ensures the process of socialization, through which individuals learn the values and norms of society and become responsible citizens.

2) Culture – Culture includes the beliefs, values, traditions, customs, language, and lifestyle of a society. It represents the way of life of people within a community and is passed down from one generation to another.

Culture is divided into two major components:

- o Material Culture Includes physical objects like clothing, buildings, art, and tools.
- o Non-material Culture Includes language, religion, morality, traditions, and social norms.

Culture binds people together and shapes their way of life. It is a dynamic process that changes over time due to external influences such as globalization and modernization, leading to cultural exchange and adaptation.

3) Social Institutions – These are organized structures that fulfill the fundamental needs of society and maintain social order. Social institutions play a crucial role in ensuring stability and continuity within society.

## **Major Social Institutions:**

a. Family – The primary unit of socialization where individuals learn



Social Action and Movements

- NOTES -

moral values, language, and culture.

- b. Education A medium for spreading knowledge, skills, and social values, contributing to individual and societal development.
- Religion Helps maintain morality, spirituality, and social cohesion.
- d. Economy Regulates the production, distribution, and consumption of goods and services.
- Politics Governs power, administration, and social control mechanisms.

These institutions help in maintaining the structure of society and ensuring the smooth functioning of collective life.

4) Social Stratification – It refers to the structured inequality among individuals and groups within society. Social stratification categorizes people based on economic, social, political, and cultural factors, leading to unequal access to resources, opportunities, and social status.

### **Types of Social Stratification:**

- a. Caste-based Stratification A birth-based system where an individual's social status is predetermined, such as the caste system in India.
- b. Class-based Stratification A system where individuals are divided based on economic status and occupation, such as lower, middle, and upper classes.
- c. Gender-based Stratification Inequality between men and women in terms of rights and opportunities.
- d. Ethnic and Racial Stratification Discrimination based on ethnicity and race.

While social stratification creates inequality in society, it also plays a role in organizing and maintaining social structures.

## 5)Socialization

Socialization is the process through which an individual learns the values, norms, traditions, and behavioral patterns of society and becomes an active member of it. This is a continuous process that begins at birth and continues throughout life.



Sociological Concepts

## **Types of Socialization**

- 1. Primary Socialization This occurs during childhood through family and close associates, where fundamental aspects such as language, morality, and basic behaviour are learned.
- 2. Secondary Socialization This takes place through schools, peer groups, workplaces, and media, helping individuals understand their roles in a broader societal context.

## **Key Agents of Socialization**

- Family The first and most crucial agent of socialization.
- School Teaches formal education and discipline.
- Peer Group Friends and social circles help individuals learn ways of interaction.
- Media Influences modern societal values and perspectives.

Socialization plays a crucial role in personality development, social harmony, and ensuring adherence to social norms.

### 6) Social Change

Social change refers to the process through which transformations occur in a society's structure, values, norms, and institutions over time. These changes can be gradual or rapid and can impact various aspects of society. Social change may result from technological advancements, cultural influences, or economic factors.

## **Major Factors of Social Change**

- i. Technology Innovations in technology influence lifestyle, communication, and the economy.
- ii. Economic Factors Industrialization, urbanization, and globalization reshape social structures.
- iii. Political Factors Governance systems, policies, and movements contribute to societal changes.
- iv. Cultural Factors Education, religion, traditions, and ideologies play a role in shaping societal transformation.
- v. Natural Disasters Events like earthquakes and floods force societies to reorganize.



## **Types of Social Change**

- Evolutionary Change Slow and gradual transformation, such as the shift from traditional to modern societies.
- Revolutionary Change Sudden and rapid transformation, such as independence movements or the industrial revolution.

Social change plays a crucial role in societal development and progress, leading to new ideas, opportunities, and lifestyles.

## 7) Social Mobility

Social mobility refers to the process by which individuals or groups change their social or economic status within a society. This change can occur across generations or within an individual's lifetime.

### **Types of Social Mobility**

- i. Upward Mobility When an individual or group moves to a higher social or economic level, such as overcoming poverty through education and skills.
- ii. Downward Mobility When an individual or group experiences a decline in social or economic status, such as losing a job and facing financial instability.
- iii. Intergenerational Mobility When the social status of one generation changes compared to the previous generation, such as a farmer's child becoming a doctor.
- iv. Intragenerational Mobility When an individual's social status changes within their lifetime, such as an employee becoming a business owner.

## **Factors Affecting Social Mobility**

- Education & Skills Higher education helps individuals improve their social status.
- Economic Opportunities Growth in industries and job opportunities enhance social mobility.
- Government Policies Reservations, subsidies, and welfare programs provide opportunities for upward mobility.
- Cultural & Social Barriers Caste, gender, and traditional beliefs can hinder mobility.

## - NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Sociological Concepts

Social mobility is a key indicator of societal development and equality.

## 8) Gender and Patriarchy

Gender is a social and cultural concept that goes beyond biological differences (male and female) and defines roles, rights, and expectations in society. It reflects the gender-based social structure, where men and women are assigned different duties, responsibilities, and opportunities.

Patriarchy is a social system in which men hold dominance and control over power, property, decision-making, and social institutions. This system often places women in subordinate positions, leading to gender inequality.

### **Effects of Patriarchy**

- 1. Educational Inequality Less emphasis on girls' education.
- 2. Economic Dependence Women receive lower wages and limited employment opportunities.
- 3. Limited Political Participation Women have less representation in decision-making roles.
- 4. Gender-Based Violence Higher cases of discrimination and violence against women.

## **Efforts Towards Gender Equality**

- Education & Awareness Campaigns
- Women's Reservation & Government Policies
- Legal Reforms & Strict Penalties
- Promotion of Gender Sensitivity

Gender equality is essential for balanced societal development, ensuring equal rights, opportunities, and freedom for women.

## 9) Social Control

Social control is the process by which society regulates its members' behaviour to maintain social order and stability. It operates through both informal and formal mechanisms to ensure compliance with societal norms and values.



## **Types of Social Control**

- Informal Social Control
- Operates through family, friends, community, and traditions.
- Example: Parental discipline, moral expectations, religious beliefs.
- Formal Social Control
- Enforced by institutions like law, government, judiciary, and police.
- Example: Penal codes, court rulings, police actions.

Key Instruments of Social Control

- Legal System Laws and penalties to prevent crimes.
- Education Teaching morality and discipline.
- Religion Encouraging ethical behaviour and social values.
- Public Opinion Social acceptance or rejection of behaviours.
- Media Highlighting right and wrong in society.

## **Importance of Social Control**

Social control ensures discipline, stability, and harmony in society by preventing crimes, maintaining social values, and guiding individual behavior.

### Modernization and Globalization

### **Modernization**

Modernization is the process through which traditional societies transform into modern societies due to scientific, technological, economic, and cultural advancements. It is linked to industrialization, urbanization, education, democracy, and social change.

### **Characteristics of Modernization**

- 1. Industrialization Shift from an agriculture-based economy to industries and services.
- Urbanization Migration from villages to cities.
- Technological Advancement Improvement in communication and transportation.
- Social Mobility Decline of caste and class influence, rise in mer-

## - NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Sociological Concepts

- it-based opportunities.
- 5. Democratization Establishment of greater freedom, equality, and civil rights.

### Globalization

Globalization is the process through which different countries become interconnected through trade, culture, and communication.

### **Characteristics of Globalization**

- 1. International Trade Exchange of goods and services on a global scale.
- 2. Cultural Exchange Sharing of ideas, languages, cuisines, and lifestyles.
- 3. Technological Growth The internet and digital communication making the world a "global village."
- 4. Multinational Corporations (MNCs) Companies operating in multiple countries.
- 5. Economic Integration Free trade, liberalization, and foreign investment.

## **Impact of Globalization**

### **Positive Effects:**

- Economic growth and job creation.
- Improvement in education, healthcare, and lifestyles.
- Cultural inclusivity on a global scale.

## **Negative Effects:**

- Threat to local cultures and traditions.
- Economic inequality and worker exploitation.
- Environmental degradation and resource depletion.

Modernization and globalization have brought societies closer, leading to rapid changes. However, balanced development with social and economic justice is crucial.

## **Unit - 14**

### 4.3 Social Structure

Social structure refers to the organization of any society and the framework of relationships among its various components. It includes various institutions, roles, rules, values, and traditions that regulate the behavior of



individuals and groups within a society.

**Definition of Social Structure** 

Social structure refers to the organized framework of elements, institutions, roles, and relationships in a society that ensures its proper functioning and harmony. Different sociologists have defined it in various ways:

### 1) MacIver & Page –

"Social structure is the organization of arrangements and relationships that exist among individuals and groups in a society."

### 2) Talcott Parsons –

"Social structure is a well-organized system of social institutions, values, and roles that maintain balance in society."

## 3) G. Insck -

"Social structure is a stable framework of social relationships that determines interconnections between various components of society."

In simple terms, social structure is the framework through which society remains organized, and individuals perform their roles and relationships. It functions through institutions like family, education, religion, politics, economic systems, caste, and class to organize society.

## **Major Components of Social Structure**

Social structure consists of various elements that ensure the organization and functioning of society. The key components are:

## 1) Social Institutions

Social institutions are established for the smooth functioning of different societal functions. Major institutions include: family, education, religion, economy, politics, law, and justice system.

## 2) Social Groups

Individuals do not exist in isolation but are part of various groups. The two main types of groups are:

- Primary Groups Like family and close friends.
- Secondary Groups Like political parties and business organizations.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Sociological Concepts

### 3) Social Stratification

It refers to the hierarchical division of individuals based on economic, social, and political inequality. It includes divisions based on caste, class, gender, income level, education, etc.

### 4) Social Norms and Values

- Social Norms: Rules and traditions that regulate accepted behaviour in society.
- Social Values: Ethical principles accepted by society, such as honesty, equality, and freedom.

### 5) Social Status and Role

- Social Status: The position or rank of an individual in society. It can be ascribed (caste, gender) or achieved (education, occupation).
- Role: Individuals perform different roles based on their social status, such as parent, teacher, or leader.

### 6) Social Control

Social control maintains discipline and balance in society through laws, customs, traditions, morality, education, and penal systems.

Social structure depends on the interrelationships between these components. They work together to maintain social stability and balance, allowing individuals and communities to function in an organized manner.

### Social Stratification and Status

Social stratification and social status play a key role in social structure. They determine inequality, divisions, and identity among individuals and groups in society.

## 1) Social Stratification

Social stratification is the process through which individuals and groups are classified into different levels or categories in society. This division is usually based on economic, social, political, caste, gender, and educational factors.

## **Types of Social Stratification**

i. Caste-Based Stratification: Determined by birth; prominent in tra-



Social Action and

Movements

ditional Indian society.

- ii. Class-Based Stratification: Depends on economic status, education, and occupation. Social mobility is possible through effort and merit.
- iii. Gender-Based Stratification: Social and economic inequality between men and women. Historically, women have had fewer rights, but modern society is improving.
- iv. Economic Stratification: Division into rich, middle-class, and poor based on wealth and income.
- v. Political Stratification: Division based on power and influence in decision-making. Some groups hold more political power than others.

### **Effects of Social Stratification**

- It creates social inequality and discrimination.
- Some groups get more resources and opportunities, while others remain deprived.
- It can lead to social conflicts like feminist movements, Dalit movements, and labour movements.

#### 2) **Social Status**

Social status refers to an individual's identity and position in society, determining their rights, responsibilities, and prestige.

## **Types of Social Status**

- Ascribed Status: Obtained by birth and cannot be changed (e.g., caste, gender, family status).
- ii. Achieved Status: Earned through personal efforts, education, and work (e.g., doctor, engineer, political leader, teacher).

## **Factors Determining Social Status**

- Economic Position Wealth and resources influence social identi-
- Education and Occupation Higher education and prestigious jobs enhance social status.
- Political Influence Power and political participation strengthen



Sociological Concepts

an individual's status.

• Culture and Tradition – Community beliefs and traditions can determine social position.

Social stratification and status highlight the inequalities and structure of society. While stratification sustains social inequality, it also helps organize society. Social status defines an individual's rights, duties, and social respect.

### **Role and Social Relations**

### 1) Role

A social role refers to the expected behaviours and responsibilities that an individual must perform based on their social status.

### **Types of Social Roles**

- Ascribed Role: Assigned by birth (e.g., caste, gender, family status).
- Achieved Role: Earned through efforts and skills (e.g., teacher, doctor, leader).
- Formal Role: Defined by institutions (e.g., government official, judge).
- Informal Role: Played in social situations (e.g., friend, advisor).

## 2) Social Relations

Social relations refer to the interactions and connections between individuals and groups in society. These relationships maintain social structure and harmony.

## **Types of Social Relations**

- Primary Relations: Emotional and close, like family and friendships.
- Secondary Relations: Objective and formal, like colleagues and business relationships.
- Formal Relations: Established through organizations and institutions (e.g., between a government official and a citizen).
- Informal Relations: Developed at a personal level (e.g., neighbours and community members).

Roles and social relations play a vital role in organizing and stabilizing society. Individuals establish different relationships based on their social roles, which help maintain social balance and development.



Social Action and Movements

## 4.4 Social Institutions and Social Groups

Humans are social beings who establish various relationships while living in society and lead an organized life. Social institutions and social groups play a crucial role in the smooth functioning and stability of society.

Social institutions are organized systems that establish rules, traditions, and values in society, ensuring the orderly functioning of social activities. Institutions like family, education, religion, economy, and politics contribute to socialization and help regulate society. On the other hand, social groups consist of individuals who are organized based on common interests, goals, and mutual relationships. These groups influence an individual's social development, thoughts, and behavior. Social groups are classified into primary and secondary groups, which function at different levels in society. Together, social institutions and groups strengthen the social structure and contribute significantly to an orderly collective life.

### 1. Social Institutions

Social institutions are organized systems that are created to ensure an orderly life in society. They function based on accepted rules, traditions, and values.

## **Major Social Institutions:**

- 1) Family The fundamental unit of society that plays a role in birth, upbringing, and the transmission of social values.
- **2)** Education A medium for the transfer of knowledge, ethics, and culture in society.
- 3) Religion Helps maintain spirituality, morality, and social unity.
- **4) Economy** A social institution related to production, distribution, and consumption, ensuring people's livelihood.
- 5) Politics An institution that controls power, governance, and social order, including government, laws, and administration.

## 2. Social Groups

A social group is an organized collection of two or more individuals connected by common interests, goals, and mutual interactions.

Types of Social Groups:

1) **Primary Groups** – Based on close, personal, and emotional relation-



Sociological Concepts

- ships. Example: Family, friend circles.
- **2) Secondary Groups** Based on professional, formal, and goal-oriented relationships. Example: Political parties, companies, trade unions.
- **3) Formal Groups** Established based on rules and structures. Example: Government institutions, corporate organizations.
- **4) Informal Groups** Based on interpersonal relationships without formal rules. Example: Friend groups, local communities.
- **5) Reference Groups** Groups that individuals aspire to or take inspiration from. Example: Celebrities, ideal leaders, or social reformers.

Social institutions and social groups play an important role in organizing and regulating society. Institutions define the structure and functioning of society, while social groups influence an individual's social life and behavior.

## **Definition and Types of Social Institutions**

### **Definition of Social Institutions:**

Social institutions are organized systems, beliefs, and traditions that work to ensure an orderly life in society. These institutions help maintain social rules, values, and ideals.

## **Definitions by Sociologists:**

- **MacIver and Page:** "A social institution is an organized system in society that functions to meet fundamental social needs."
- Gillin and Gillin: "Social institutions are organized structures developed to fulfill the basic needs of social life."

Types of Social Institutions:

Social institutions can be classified into different categories based on their functions and objectives:

## 1. Primary Institutions:

These institutions fulfill the fundamental needs of society.

- **Family** The basic unit of society, facilitating socialization and value development.
- Marriage A social and legal relationship between two individuals that helps in family formation.



### 2. Economic Institutions:

These institutions control the process of production, distribution, and consumption in society.

- Trade and Industry Institutions that manage economic activities.
- Banks and Financial Institutions Systems for the exchange and investment of money.

### 3. Educational Institutions:

These institutions work for the spread of education and knowledge in society.

- Schools and Universities Institutions that provide formal education.
- Education Boards and Research Centers Organizations that frame educational policies and conduct research.

### 4. Religious Institutions:

These institutions maintain spirituality, morality, and traditions in society.

- Temples, Mosques, Churches, Gurudwaras Centers for worship and religious activities.
- **Religious Organizations** Groups promoting religious values and ethics.

### 5. Political Institutions:

These institutions maintain governance and law and order in society.

- **Government** Legislature, executive, and judiciary.
- **Political Parties** Organizations that participate in policymaking and administration.

Social institutions play a crucial role in maintaining social organization and balance. They function in different areas to meet societal needs and provide individuals with a structured social life.

## Social Groups: Definition, Types, and Characteristics Definition of Social Groups:

A social group is an organized collection of individuals connected through shared goals, interests, traditions, rules, or mutual relationships.

## - NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Sociological Concepts

These groups are vital for social organization and individual socialization.

#### **Definitions by Sociologists:**

- MacIver and Page: "A social group is an organization of two or more individuals who share mutual relationships and a common consciousness."
- **H.M. Johnson:** "Social groups consist of individuals who interact with each other and function as part of a common social structure."

Types of Social Groups:

Social groups are classified based on different criteria:

- 1. Based on Contact and Relationships:
- **Primary Groups** Small groups with close emotional bonds. Example: Family, friend circles.
- **Secondary Groups** Large groups with professional or formal relationships. Example: Offices, political parties.

#### 2. Based on Organization:

- **Formal Groups** Structured with predefined rules. Example: Government institutions, corporate organizations.
- **Informal Groups** Naturally formed without formal rules. Example: Friend circles, informal workplace groups.

# 3. Based on Membership:

- **In-Groups** Groups that individuals feel connected to. Example: Ethnic groups, religious communities.
- **Out-Groups** Groups individuals see as separate or different. Example: Rival sports teams, different caste or religious groups.

# 4. Based on Objectives:

- **Interest Groups** Formed for specific goals. Example: Trade unions, activist organizations.
- **Reference Groups** Groups that individuals aspire to or take inspiration from. Example: Celebrities, successful professionals.

Characteristics of Social Groups:

1) Mutual Interaction – Members engage in communication and interac-



tions.

- 2) Common Interests All members are connected by shared objectives.
  - 3) Group Consciousness A sense of "we" develops among members.
- 4) Social Control Groups establish norms and rules to regulate members' behaviour.
- 5) Stability and Continuity Social groups can be temporary or permanent but maintain a distinct existence.
- 6) Group Structure Each group has defined roles and a hierarchy.

Social groups are an essential part of the social structure. They facilitate individual socialization, personality development, and collective consciousness, contributing to social stability and progress.

#### **Primary and Secondary Groups**

#### 1. Primary Groups:

#### **Definition:**

Primary groups are those where relationships are close, personal, and emotional. Members interact directly and maintain long-term connections.

#### **Characteristics:**

- **Direct Interaction** Face-to-face communication.
- Close Relationships Deep personal and emotional bonds.
- **Sense of Unity** Members feel a strong sense of belonging.
- **Long-Term Existence** These groups persist over time.
- Informal Control Behaviour is regulated through traditions and moral values.

### **Examples:**

- Family
- Close friends
- Local communities

# 2. Secondary Groups:

#### **Definition:**

Secondary groups are based on formal, goal-oriented, and professional relationships with minimal emotional attachment.



- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Sociological Concepts

#### **Characteristics:**

- **Indirect Interaction** Communication occurs through letters, phone, or digital means.
- Formal Relationships Connections are based on rules and objectives
- Less Personal Attachment Members are united for a common goal.
- **Temporary Nature** These groups exist for specific purposes and may change over time.

#### **Examples:**

- Political parties
- Government organizations
- Companies and trade unions

Both primary and secondary groups are essential for maintaining the social structure. Primary groups aid in emotional and social development, while secondary groups help in organized social functioning.

#### **Unit - 15**

#### 4.5 Socialization

#### **Socialization**

#### 1. Definition of Socialization

Socialization is the process through which an individual learns the rules, values, traditions, and cultural beliefs of society and develops their personality. This process enables a person to effectively participate in society.

# **Definitions by Prominent Sociologists:**

- **Kimball Young:** "Socialization is the process by which an individual becomes a member of a social group and learns its ways of behavior."
- **Gillin and Gillin:** "Socialization is the process by which culture is transferred from one generation to another, making the individual an integral part of the group."

# 2. Types of Socialization

1) Primary Socialization: This occurs in the early years of life, mainly



provided by family and parents.

**Example:** Learning language, adopting social etiquette.

2) Secondary Socialization: This takes place after childhood and helps integrate individuals into broader societal structures. Institutions such as schools, peer groups, religious, and political organizations play a role in this.

> **Example:** Learning discipline in school, developing teamwork in sports.

3) Anticipatory Socialization: This prepares individuals for roles they will assume in the future.

> **Example:** A medical student learning professional ethics before becoming a doctor.

4) **Resocialization:** The process where an individual abandons previously learned behaviours and values to adopt new social norms.

**Example:** A prisoner reintegrating into society after release.

#### 3. Agents of Socialization

Socialization occurs through various social institutions and groups, including:

- 1) Family: The most important source of primary socialization. It lays the foundation for language, morality, and social values.
- 2) School: Plays a vital role in secondary socialization, fostering discipline, teamwork, and social skills.
- 3) Peer Group: Influences behavior, fashion, and ideology, especially during adolescence.
- 4) Religious Institutions: Help in imparting moral values, traditions, and ethics.
- 5) Mass Media: Television, the internet, newspapers, and social media influence individuals' thoughts and perspectives.

#### 4. Characteristics of Socialization

- 1) **Lifelong Process:** It continues from birth to death.
- 2) Cultural Transmission: Socialization ensures that cultural traditions are passed on to the next generation.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Sociological Concepts

- 3) Social Control: It shapes an individual's behaviour according to societal norms.
- **4) Personal Development:** Helps in identity formation and personality development.

#### **Conclusion:**

Socialization is an essential element of society that helps individuals adapt to social norms and live a collective life. It is not limited to the early stages of life but continues throughout various experiences in life.

#### 4.6 Social Control

Social control is the process through which society regulates the behaviour of its members according to established social norms and values. This control is exercised through both formal and informal means.

#### 1. Definition of Social Control

Social control is the process by which society regulates the behaviour of its members to maintain social order and stability. It motivates individuals to act in accordance with social norms and values.

# **Definitions by Prominent Sociologists:**

- **Gillin and Gillin:** "Social control is the use of those means that encourage individuals to follow the rules and traditions of society."
- **Kimball Young:** "It is a process that maintains social order and compels individuals to act in accordance with the group."

## 2. Objectives of Social Control

- 1) To maintain peace and order in society.
- 2) To protect social values and traditions.
- 3) To ensure social discipline.
- 4) To promote social harmony and cooperation.
- 5) To encourage individuals to behave according to societal norms.

# 3. Types of Social Control



1) Formal Social Control:

• Implemented through laws, rules, and institutions.

• Enforced by government bodies, police, courts, and other administrative authorities.

**Examples:** 

- Enforcing laws and regulations.
- Punishing crimes.
- Maintaining discipline in government and educational institutions.

2) Informal Social Control:

- Enforced through morality, traditions, customs, and social pressure.
- Controlled by family, community, and peer groups.

**Examples:** 

- Parents teaching good behaviour to children.
- Society criticizing inappropriate behaviour.
- Expectation to follow cultural and religious traditions.

4. Means of Social Control

1) Legislative Means: Laws, constitutions, and government regulations that regulate individual behaviour.

**Examples:** Traffic rules, penal codes.

**2) Religious Means:** Religious traditions and beliefs influence individual behaviour.

**Examples:** Visiting temples, mosques, churches as a cultural practice.

3) Moral Means: Ethical education and values help individuals distinguish between right and wrong.

Examples: Practicing honesty, kindness, and integrity.

**4) Social Customs and Traditions:** Established beliefs and customs that people are expected to follow.

**Examples:** Marriage traditions, cultural festivals.

5) Public Opinion: Social approval or disapproval influences individual behaviour.

- NOTES -

Social Action and Movements



Sociological Concepts

**Examples:** Criticism of wrongful actions on social media.

**6) Education:** Helps individuals develop an understanding of right and wrong.

**Examples:** Moral education in school curricula.

Social control is an essential process for maintaining stability and order in society. It regulates individual behaviour and helps align them with social standards. Both formal and informal types of control play a crucial role in ensuring social harmony and peace.

#### **Unit - 16**

#### 4.7 Social Change

Social change is the process through which the structure, beliefs, traditions, institutions, ideas, and behaviors of society transform over time. This change can occur gradually (evolutionary) or rapidly (revolutionary).

#### **Definition of Social Change**

Social change is the process by which the structure, institutions, values, traditions, and behaviors of society change either gradually or rapidly. It reflects the progress of society, modernization, and the ability to adopt new ideas.

### **Definitions by Prominent Sociologists:**

- **MacIver and Page:** "Social change is the change in social relationships, social processes, and social organizations."
- Gillin and Gillin: "It is the process of change that affects the structure and functions of social life."

# 2. Key Elements of Social Change

- Universal Process: Social change occurs in all societies.
- Continuous Process: Society is always evolving, and change never stops.
- Variation in Speed: Some changes occur slowly (e.g., cultural transformation), while others happen rapidly (e.g., the Industrial Revolution).
- **Planned or Unplanned:** Some changes are planned (e.g., government policies), while others occur naturally (e.g., changes due to natural di-



sasters).

• Multi-Dimensional Impact: Social change affects economic, political, cultural, and technological aspects of society.

Social Action and Movements

# 3. Causes of Social Change

- 1) Natural Causes Natural disasters like earthquakes, floods, and droughts play a significant role in shaping societies.
- 2) Scientific and Technological Progress The Industrial Revolution, the internet, and new technologies have modernized society.
- **3) Economic Changes** Industrialization, globalization, and market-driven economies lead to social transformations.
- **4) Political Factors** Changes in policies, laws, democracy, and revolutions reshape social structures.
- 5) Cultural and Religious Influences New ideas, religious reform movements, education, and global cultural influences bring about change.
- **6) Population Growth and Migration** Urbanization, displacement, and migration alter social structures.
- 7) Education and Awareness Education fosters new ideas, awareness of rights, and acceptance of change.

# 4. Types of Social Change

- 1) Evolutionary Change Slow, gradual changes, such as shifts in traditions.
- **2) Revolutionary Change** Sudden and rapid transformations, such as independence movements or technological revolutions.

**Example:** The French Revolution, the Russian Revolution.

- 3) Planned Change Changes implemented through government policies or social institutions, such as education reform programs.
- **4)** Natural Change Changes caused by natural events or disasters, such as climate change impacts.
- 5) Developmental Change Gradual transitions, such as the shift from an agricultural to an industrial society.
- 6) Structural Change Changes in societal institutions and systems.

**Example:** The decline of caste-based discrimination, the end of feudal



Sociological Concepts

systems.

7) Cultural Change – Transformation in traditions, values, and beliefs.

**Example:** The influence of Western culture, globalization.

#### 5. Examples of Social Change in India

- Women's Education and Empowerment Women, once restricted from education, are now progressing in all fields.
- **Abolition of Sati and Child Marriage** Social reformers and laws eradicated these practices.
- **Digital Revolution** Mobile phones and the internet have changed lifestyles.
- **Green Revolution** Technological advancements in agriculture have increased production.

#### 6. Importance of Social Change

- Helps societies progress and modernize.
- Encourages the adoption of new ideas and technologies.
- Eliminates social inequalities and outdated traditions.

# 7. Effects of Social Change

#### **Positive Effects:**

- Improved living standards through scientific and technological progress.
- Increased education and awareness.
- Growth of gender equality and human rights.\
- Elimination of social evils like untouchability and child marriage.

# **Negative Effects:**

- Loss of cultural identity.
- Rise in social inequality and conflicts.
- Unemployment and displacement issues.
- Increase in crime rates.



Social Action and Movements

Social change is an inevitable process that drives society forward. It can be slow or sudden and affects every aspect of life. The causes and effects of social change are multi-dimensional, influencing all social classes. To ensure positive change, education, awareness, and policy reforms are essential.

#### 4.8 Conclusion

Sociological concepts such as social structure, social institutions, social groups, socialization, social control, and social change are fundamental in understanding the dynamics of human society. Social structure provides the framework within which individuals and institutions interact, while social institutions ensure stability and continuity through established norms and roles. Social groups shape individual identities and social interactions, playing a crucial role in the formation of collective consciousness.

Socialization is a lifelong process that transmits cultural values, norms, and behaviors from one generation to another, ensuring the integration of individuals into society. Social control regulates behavior through formal and informal mechanisms, maintaining social order and harmony. Meanwhile, social change is an inevitable and ongoing process that transforms societal values, structures, and institutions, often driven by factors like technology, economic shifts, and social movements.

Understanding these sociological concepts helps in analyzinghow societies function, evolve, and adapt to new challenges. It also provides insights into addressing social issues, fostering inclusivity, and promoting meaningful transformations in contemporary societies.

# 4.9 Comprehension Questions

### (1) Social Structure

- 1) What do you understand by social structure?
- 2) What are the main components of social structure?
- 3) What is the relationship between social structure and social institutions?
- 4) What is the importance of stratification in social structure?
- 5) What are the characteristics of the social structure of Indian society?



Sociological Concepts

#### (2) Social Institutions and Social Groups

- 1) What are social institutions? How many types of social institutions are there?
- 2) Explain family, education, and religion as social institutions.
- 3) What are social groups? How many types of social groups exist?
- 4) What is the difference between primary and secondary groups?
- 5) How does a peer group contribute to the socialization of an individual?

#### (3) Socialization

- 1) What is the definition of socialization?
- 2) What are the main types of socialization?
- 3) How does the family contribute to socialization?
- 4) Through which institutions does secondary socialization occur?
- 5) What is resocialization? Give an example.

## (4) Social Control

- 1) What do you understand by social control?
- 2) What is the difference between formal and informal social control?
- 3) What are the major means of social control?
- 4) How do laws and morality influence social control?
- 5) How does public opinion function as a form of social control?

# (5) Social Change

- 1) What is social change?
- 2) What are the major causes of social change?
- 3) What is the difference between revolutionary and evolutionary social change?



4) How does globalization affect social change?

5) What is the impact of technological and scientific advancements on social change?

# - NOTES -

Social Action and Movements

#### 4.10 References

- 1) Berger, P. L., & Luckmann, T. (1966). The social construction of reality: A treatise in the sociology of knowledge. Anchor Books.
- 2) Durkheim, É. (1893/1997). The division of labor in society (W. D. Halls, Trans.). Free Press.
- 3) Giddens, A. (1984). The constitution of society: Outline of the theory of structuration. University of California Press.
- 4) Haralambos, M., & Holborn, M. (2013). Sociology: Themes and perspectives. HarperCollins.
- 5) Merton, R. K. (1957). Social theory and social structure. Free Press.
- 6) Parsons, T. (1951). The social system. Routledge.
- 7) Scott, J. (2014). A dictionary of sociology (4th ed.). Oxford University Press.
- **8)** Weber, M. (1922/1978). Economy and society: An outline of interpretive sociology (G. Roth & C. Wittich, Eds.). University of California Press.

#### The Ultimate Conclusion

Social movements, social action, and social change are interconnected processes that play a crucial role in shaping societies. Social movements arise in response to social, political, and economic injustices, with the aim of challenging existing structures and advocating for change. Throughout history, movements have been driven by various ideological frameworks, leadership styles, and strategic processes, influencing policy, governance, and cultural norms.

Social action serves as a key method in social work, emphasizing or-



Sociological Concepts

ganized efforts to address systemic inequalities. Different models of social action, such as Paulo Freire's conscientization model, Saul Alinsky's radical community organizing, and liberation theology, highlight the role of awareness, grassroots mobilization, and moral responsibility in social transformation.

Theories of social movements, ranging from classical to new social movements (NSMs), demonstrate how collective action evolves with changing socio-political contexts. The contributions of figures like Mahatma Gandhi, Martin Luther King Jr., and Frantz Fanon exemplify diverse ideological approaches—nonviolent resistance, civil rights activism, and anti-colonial struggles—each shaping global movements for justice and equality.

In sociological terms, social structure, institutions, groups, socialization, and control form the foundation of society. These concepts influence how individuals interact, conform, and challenge the status quo. Social change, whether evolutionary or revolutionary, remains an ongoing process, driven by movements, activism, and transformative leadership.

In conclusion, social action and social movements are vital mechanisms for societal progress. Understanding their history, theories, and models helps in addressing contemporary challenges. Future efforts should focus on inclusive, sustainable, and equitable strategies to foster meaningful change and uphold human rights worldwide.

# **MATS UNIVERSITY**

MATS CENTER FOR OPEN & DISTANCE EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY CAMPUS : Aarang Kharora Highway, Aarang, Raipur, CG, 493 441

RAIPUR CAMPUS: MATS Tower, Pandri, Raipur, CG, 492 002

T: 0771 4078994, 95, 96, 98 M: 9109951184, 9755199381 Toll Free: 1800 123 819999

eMail: admissions@matsuniversity.ac.in Website: www.matsodl.com



# MATS CENTRE FOR OPEN & DISTANCE EDUCATION

# Field practicum

Master of Social Work (MSW) Semester - 2







# MATS CENTRE FOR OPEN & DISTANCE EDUCATION

# Village Camp (Community Organisation)

Master of Social Work (MSW) Semester - 2



